Tennis West

2011/12 Annual Report

2011



Contents





Tennis West PO Box 116 BURSWOOD WA 6100

State Tennis Centre Victoria Park Drive BURSWOOD WA 6100

P: (08) 6462 8300 F: (08) 9361 1500

www.tennis.com.au/wa info@tenniswest.com.au

Corporate Profile	3
Chief Executive Officer's Report	4
Tennis Australia Report	Ę
Membership & Clubs	6
Community Tennis	3
Athlete Development	11
Coach Development	13
The 100 Club	15
Regional Tennis	16
Tennis League & Tournaments	20
Facilities & Tennis 2020	24
My Tennis	25
Sponsor Acknowledgements	26
Women in Tennis	27
Tennis Officials Australia – WA Division	29
Tennis Seniors Western Australia	31
State Tennis Centre	33
Office Bearers, Life Members & Committees	34
Significant Achievements	36
Tournament Results and Awards	39
Treasurer's Report	47
Financial Statements	48
Independent Audit Report	70

Corporate Profile



TENNIS WEST

Tennis West is Western Australia's governing body for tennis, and manages all aspects of the sport, from elite player development, to growing participation within the affiliated club network and community.

Tennis West is headquartered at the State Tennis Centre on the Burswood Peninsula, with affiliated bodies located as far north as Kununurra, south as Albany and as far inland as Kalgoorlie.

HERITAGE

Tennis in Western Australia had its beginnings in the family homestead environment in both metropolitan and country areas. With the gold rushes in the last decade of the nineteenth century came the growth of tennis clubs. After two unsuccessful attempts a tennis association was established to arrange inter-club competition and determine the status of tournaments.

On 17 April 1903, a motion was passed 'that an Association be formed to be called the Lawn Tennis Association of Western Australia (LTAWA)'. The new LTAWA then confirmed its decision, on 14 October 1904, to join the Australasian Lawn Tennis Association (ALTA).

It was in 1912 that the name Western Australian Lawn Tennis Association (WALTA) was adopted. In the 1990s, in keeping with a move by the National body to use the trading name Tennis Australia, the acronym WALTA was cast aside for Tennis West.

During the 1980s, the prospect of the Association having its own offices and tennis complex always appeared to be just around the corner. On 20 September 1994, the new State Tennis Centre was officially launched on the Burswood Peninsula.

From uncertain beginnings, with the strains of the war and the division between amateurs and professionals, the Association has grown from a few small clubs conducting winter pennant tennis to administering one of the state's major sports.

[Reference: Phillips, Harry (1995) Tennis West: A History of the Western Australian Lawn Tennis Association from the 1890s to the 1990s. Sydney: Playwright Publishing]

VISION STATEMENT

A thriving tennis culture in Western Australia

MISSION STATEMENT

To create a comprehensive support system for tennis in Western Australia

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The Tennis West Council consists of members representing all Affiliated Tennis Clubs in WA. The number of representatives from a Metropolitan Club is derived from the number of members the Club has during that financial year.

The Country Clubs are represented by Zone Delegates. These delegates are appointed by the individual Tennis Zone committee. The number of Zone delegates is derived from the number of Club members within the Zone. The Tennis West Council meets on a bi-monthly basis.

The Tennis West Board of Directors is made up of 9 members. The Board of Directors is voted to office by the Council on a 2-year tenure. Any vacancies arising are appointed by the existing Board of Directors to a casual position until that position comes up for renewal at the next AGM. The Tennis West Board of Directors meets on a monthly basis.

The Tennis West Chief Executive Officer is appointed by the Board to oversee the operations of the Association.



Departments
Community Tennis
Player Development
Events & Marketing
Tennis Competition
Coach Development & Talent Identification
Finance & Information Technology
Media & Communication
State Tennis Centre

Chief Executive Officer's Report



It is an honour to provide the Chief Executive Officer's report, my first since taking up the position in October 2011.

The year provided an exiting period with many positives for Western Australian tennis. The Hopman Cup remains the crown jewel in our tournament calendar and it is with great excitement that the event has been secured to continue in the new Perth arena. The partnership between the International Tennis Federation, Tennis West, Tennis Australia and the State government will continue to provide Western Australians with live access to the world's best players.

Tennis West finished with a healthy surplus of \$96,230 resulting in a net gain to member equity. A large portion of our savings can be attributed to growth and efficiencies employed in the State Tennis Centre functions business. The Association will continue to employ a fiscally prudent approach in view of the uncertainty surrounding the redevelopment of the State Tennis Centre.

We remain focused on our core drivers in growing the sport. The Community Tennis team introduced MLC Tennis Hotshots to more than 30,000 children across the state. In partnership with our club coaches, Hotshots provides children as young as three or four years old the opportunity to start playing tennis with modified equipment, suited to their level of physical strength.

In addition to Hotshots, Cardio Tennis was launched during the Australian Open 2012. Tennis West embraced the initiative with 30 coaches throughout the state registering to be qualified to deliver fun-filled high-energy workouts aimed at all playing standards.

Collectively as a state we continue to punch above our weight in player development. In the seniors, Matt Ebden and Casey Dellacqua did well representing Australia in Davis Cup and Federation Cup. In the juniors, Storm Sanders was one of only three girls nationally to gain an Australian Institute of Sport scholarship and the girls 14 and under team won the National Championship held in Melbourne in December.

Tennis League provided intense competition for over 5,000 of our members and is an integral part of our business. BGC through the Brikmakers brand continued their sponsorship of the league with one of the highlights being the State League Men's finals held at Cottesloe Tennis Club and the Women's finals held at City Beach Club.

Tennis West remains most appreciative of the support from our sponsors. The D'Arcy Slater Foundation significantly increased their support in January for the D'Arcy Slater Cup and the Country Schools Classic. The CBH group continues to be a major sponsor of regional tennis and country events. Sportrophy and Linneys support for the Awards night and the Legends breakfast helped make both these events highlights in our tennis calendar. The Women in Tennis continue to do great work in supporting our young girls fulfill their talent. It has been my pleasure meeting the ladies on the committee and witnessing their hard work.

I would also like to extend appreciation to Steve Wood, the CEO of Tennis Australia and Craig Tiley, the Director of Tennis, both who have been generous with their time and advice in ensuring tennis in the West continues to expand and grow.

Finally, I wish to thank the board for their support and guidance throughout the year. The board is to be commended for their contribution to our sport and the approach in which they considered a number of critical decisions. My belief is we are well placed to develop a vibrant club environment that is critical to the future of tennis in Western Australia.

Mich

Michael Robertson Chief Executive Officer, Tennis West



Tennis Australia Report



A year of growth and development

The past 12 months have been an important step toward our 2016 goal of having four million Australians playing our great sport.

This step has been one taken in unison between a group of people that have delivered every facet of tennis to the community. That group has very prominently featured Tennis West and the different regions within the State, community tennis officers, clubs and centres within the regions and importantly, the coaches, school teachers and parents within those communities.

Together, more than ever before, we are all working together for the betterment of the game.

Central to that combined effort across the nation has been the evolution of two programs which are key to participation growth –MLC Tennis Hot Shots and Cardio Tennis.

It has become quickly evident that there is a serious public appetite for the national kids' starter program. More than a quarter of a million children enjoyed MLC Tennis Hot Shots last financial year and we are aiming to grow that substantially in the next 12 months.

Similarly Cardio Tennis seems to have tapped into a vein of interest in the tennis-fitness sector and it has gained some strong momentum since it was launched earlier this year.

Underpinning this growth is a significant and ongoing investment in facilities. This investment in Places to Play has been building for several years and has enabled the establishment or refurbishment of more than 1200 courts in what has been the biggest injection of funds into tennis facilities in the history of the sport. Again, that has been a joint effort between the tennis community and various levels of government. It is an initiative that needs to continue as we grow the interest in tennis.

One of the great moments of the last year that impacted us all, was Sam Stosur's incredible victory in the 2011 US Open. Sam's story is a wonderful lesson in overcoming the adversity of illness and her success is a testimony to the rewards of hard work, great talent and a wonderful attitude. She is a standout both as an athlete and a person. She helped lead the Australian Fed Cup team into the World Group with a stunning upset over Germany on clay in Stuttgart in April. Sam is a credit to herself, her team and her family and she continues to do Australian tennis proud.

But Sam wasn't the only highlight, as a crop of talented juniors showed some great promise with the Junior Girls Ashleigh Barty, Belinda Woolcock and Brooke Rischbieth taking out the Junior Fed Cup final in October, while Nick Kyrgios and Andrew Harris won back to back junior Grand Slam doubles titles at Wimbledon and Roland Garros this year.

There have been numerous off court successes as well, as staff in Tennis Australia and the Member Associations continue to explore ways to ensure all points of engagement with our sport are first class and encourage greater interaction between tennis and communities.

One of the ways we continue to do this is through the provision of great events at community, capital city and national level. History has shown us that these events inspire people to play which in turn inspires people to attend great events and so the upward spiral continues. Obviously the Hopman Cup is a fine example of that.

Tennis West has also led the way in the National Tennis League pilot. Wembley Downs, Peppermint Grove, Hensman/Midland and Dalkeith Tennis Clubs won the right to represent WA in the national final held at Melbourne Park during the Australian Open.

Following the success of the 2011 National Tennis League pilot the competition will transform to become the Asia Pacific Tennis League (ATL) in 2012. The ATL will operate in all state environments, in conjunction with Member Associations, culminating in the finals series at the AO.

Finally, to the WA tennis family, thank you the part you have played in growing the sport. I am very proud to work alongside such a committed and focused group of people, and I look forward with great confidence to embarking upon the next chapter of our country's tennis story.

Steve Wood

Dew Wood

Chief Executive Officer, Tennis Australia

Membership & Clubs



MEMBERSHIP DETAILS			
	2011/12	2010/11	2009/10
Metro Clubs	67	67	70
Country Clubs	123	121	128
	190	188	198
Metro Members	12,122	12,737	12,835
Country Members	7,966	7,288	7,315
	20,088	20,025	20,150
Tennis Coaches Australia – WA	0	0	0
Tennis Officials Australia – WA	43	47	0
Tennis Seniors Australia – WA	536	546	606
Associate Members*	-	95	-
	579	688	606

^{*}Affiliated Body does not have specific Tennis membership; therefore membership is based on the number of courts at the facility.

2011/12 Metropolitain A ffiliated Club Network

Alexander Park Maida Vale
Allen Park Manning
Applecross Maylands
Armadale Melville-Palmyra
Bassendean Midland Lawn
Bayswater Mosman Park
Belmont Park Mt Lawley

Blue Gum Park Next Generation Perth South

Brixton Street Nedlands Bull Creek Nollamara Canning North Beach City Beach North Perth North Shore Claremont Corinthian Park Ocean Ridge Cottesloe Old Collegians Daglish Onslow Park Dalkeith Parkwood East Fremantle Peppermint Grove

Floreat Park Reabold Forrestfield Robertson Park Fremantle Rockingham Glen Forrest Roleystone Gosnells Memorial Park Royal Kings Park Safety Bay Greenwood Hensman Park Scarborough Higgins Park Sorrento Kalamunda South Perth Kardinya Tennis Seniors WA Tennis at Spearwood Kelmscott

Kingsley
Kwinana
Leederville
Lesmurdie
Loton Park

Thornlie
UWA
Wanneroo
Wembley Downs
Willetton

Membership & Clubs



2011/12 REGIONAL AFFILIATED CLUBS & ZONES

Central Districts Beverley Cadoux Cunderdin Dowerin Kellerberrin Koorda Meckering Merredin Districts

Merredin Railways Northam Nungarin Quairading South Caroling Wamenusking Wyalkatchem

York

Eastern Districts Ardath Bruce Rock

Corrigin Hyden Kondinin Kulin

Moorine Rock Mt Arrowsmith Mt Walker Narambeen Southern Cross

Gascoyne Carnarvon Exmouth

Goldfields Goldfields

Great Southern Gnowangerup Katanning Kojonup Kukerin Lake Grace Newdegate Pingaring Tambellup

Kimberley Broome Kununurra

Tarin Rock

Lower Great Southern

Denmark Emu Point Kendenup Lawley Park Merrifield Park Mt Barker Tenterden Midwest Ajana Binnu

Chapman Valley Dongara Geraldton Kalbarri Mullewa Northampton Spalding Park Tarcoola Park

Walkaway

Yuna

Moore Districts Badgingarra Ballidu **Bolgart** Dandaragan Gingin Goomalling Jurien Bay Kalannie Konnongorring Milling Moora Toodyay Wongan Hills Wannamal Wubin Yerecoin

North Midlands Carnamah Coorow Latham Mingenew Morawa Perenjori

Peel Mandurah

Singleton-Golden Bay South Mandurah Yunderup

Pilbara Karratha Newman Port Headland Paraburdoo Tom Price South Hedland

South Coast Esperance Grass Patch Ravensthorpe South West Australind Boyup Brook Bridgetown Bunbury Busselton Collie Cowaramup Dardanup Donnybrook Dunsborough Harvey Margaret River Ringbark

Upper Great Southern

Boddington Brookton Cuballing Darkan Dudinin Dumbleyung Highbury Moodiarrup Narrogin Narrogin Railways

Pingelly

Pingelly Pumphreys Bridge

Toolibin Wagin Wickepin Yealering

Community Tennis



SUNSMART CLUB CLINIC PROGRAM

Healthway provide financial support for the 2011/12 SunSmart Club Clinic Program. The concept of this program is to assist Tennis West affiliated clubs with financial support of \$250 to help cover the cost of conducting events to increase club membership and to promote the SunSmart message. These events include; Family Fun Days, Sponsors and Corporate events, Come & Try Days as well as Junior and Adult Tournaments. In total these events were held at eight clubs, attracting 980 participants to the sport of tennis.

The following metropolitan clubs successfully applied for a 2011/2012 SunSmart Club Clinic Grant: Sorrento, Canning, Maida Vale, Maylands, Blue Gum, East Fremantle, Brixton Street and Corinthian Park.

TENNIS FOR PEOPLE WITH INTELLECTUAL DISABILITIES (ID)

Tennis West with support from Healthway and Tennis Australia coordinated tennis programs for people with intellectual disability at the State Tennis Centre and Brixton Tennis Centre each term during the 2011/2012 year. A total of five coaching programs were delivered to 36 participants, ranging in age from 6 – 50 years.

The weekday program at the State Tennis Centre has proven to be one of the most popular programs on offer. This program is specifically targeted at adults and has doubled in participant numbers since its inception twelve months ago. With the continued increase a second timeslot was introduced.



ID Program at the State Tennis Centre

WHEELCHAIR TENNIS

The Wheelchair Tennis season commenced in October 2011 with a visit from the National Wheelchair Tennis Coach, Greg Crump. Whilst in WA, Greg ran the following sessions; a coach education session with 8 coaches in attendance, a rehabilitation centre coaching session at Shenton Park Rehabilitation Centre and a coaching program and mini tournaments held at WA Wheelchair sports, with 12 participants.

A junior wheelchair tennis coaching session is also conducted once a term at Wheelchair Sports WA in conjunction with the 'Little Dribblers' Multisport program. This program exposes around 10 participants a term to tennis, and is a fantastic introduction to the sport. An evening adult social tennis program was also introduced at Wheelchair Sports WA, with 14 participants attending the 4 week program. The aim for next year is to transition these participants to a social tournament that will run alongside a Mainstream tennis tournament based

at the State Tennis Centre. This program continues to receive funding support from Healthway and Tennis Australia.



Adult Social Tennis Program at Wheelchair Sports W.A



Indigenous Tennis Program

The 2011/2012 Indigenous Tennis program, supported by Tennis Australia (TA) and the Department of Sport & Recreation (DSR), encouraged Indigenous people within the community to participate in tennis activities. These activities included: tennis in school sessions, the annual Harmony Day tournament and courses that up-skilling local community members with coaching and/or officiating qualifications.

Seven schools participated in the tennis in schools program, namely four metropolitan and three regional schools. The seven schools which were involved were: Bentley Park, Queens Park, Middle Swan, Allendale, Spencer Park, Mt Lockyer and Lesmurdie. The program was well received by all schools involved and introduced 856 participants to the sport of tennis.

The focus of the Department of Sport & Recreation program was to build the capacity of the local community through a range of up skilling opportunities. Tennis West identified these as coach development and officiating courses; however this program had limited success with only one enrolment into the Introduction to MLC Tennis Hot Shots course.

Community Tennis



HARMONY DAY INTERSCHOOL TENNIS CHALLENGE

The State Tennis Centre hosted the Annual Harmony Day Indigenous Interschool Tennis Challenge during Term 1, 2012. Sixty-four students from five schools including: Carlisle, Clayton View, Queens Park, Avonvale and West Northam competed in the modified tennis tournament to win the coveted title. The aim of this event is to allow those children who have been participating in the tennis in schools programs to bring their new skills together, whilst representing the school in a competitive but fun environment. Carlisle Primary School won the event with Clayton View a close Runner Up.

In addition to the round robin tennis challenge, each school was invited to put their serving skills to the test, with the Inflatable Speed Serve. All participants received a gift for their participation and were invited to a BBQ and presentation. Overall, the event was a huge success, with 2 more schools competing compared to 2011 and was enjoyable for all involved. All schools received funding support to cover costs of the teacher relief and bus travel.



MLC TENNIS HOT SHOTS

MLC Tennis Hot Shots is the National kid's starter program for tennis. The courts are smaller; the racquets are lighter and low compression balls that bounce the perfect height. The program makes learning tennis fun and appropriate to develop the child's skills using the three development stages red, orange and green. The MLC Tennis Hot Shots program has also incorporated to kids disability programs, indigenous inclusive programs and whilst on regional road shows.

Tennis West has had great success with this program in 2011/2012 with great participation within the club and school programs. The numbers included:

- Registered Coaches 64
- Club Participants 3524
- Tennis in Schools Participants 25828
- Club Program Participants 3524

Tennis West conducted numerous MLC Tennis Hot Shots activations throughout 2011/2012 including; community days, festivals, road shows and other displays promoting and encouraging the community to visit their local MLC Tennis Hot Shots deliverer and get their kids involved in this great program. The MLC Tennis Hot Shots Program is looking to develop further in 2012/2013 with the introduction of a National Schools Program, Coach Ambassador Program and Tournaments. The feedback from the coaches, schools, parents and kids with was

really positive and we look forward to further program growth in the future.

MLC TENNIS HOT SHOTS CHALLENGES

MLC Tennis Hot Shots Challenge Events are designed to complement the MLC Tennis Hot Shots weekly coaching and competition program. Challenge events provide young players with a first tournament experience in a positive, friendly club environment. The number of Challenge Events held in WA during the 2011/12 year increased to 33, a rise of 2 from last financial year.

This year, a 'Regional Tennis Centre' MLC Tennis Hot Shots Challenge' initiative was introduced, whereby each of the Metropolitan Regional Tennis Centre's hosted a playoff event, and the top 6 participants from each venue were invited to attend a finals event held at the State Tennis Centre. This initiative was well received by the participants and the clubs, and the standard of play at the finals event was exceptional. Tennis West looks forward to making this initiative an annual event.

A MLC Tennis Hot Shots Challenge Event was also aligned with the inaugural Festival of Tennis held at the State Tennis Centre in November. This event helped to showcase the Hot Shots brand, and provided the participants with a fun 'first tournament' experience. Participants were invited to take part in the festival activities after the challenge event, and parents were encouraged to try-out the new National Adult Program, Cardio Tennis whilst their children competed in the Challenge Event.



CARDIO TENNIS

Cardio Tennis is a fun, social, group tennis fitness program for people of all ages and abilities. It provides the opportunity for seasoned tennis players and the general public to participate in an enjoyable and high-energy interactive workout. Cardio Tennis was launched by Tennis Australia in January 2012 and resulted in 31 WA Tennis Australia coach members signing up to deliver this program. Tennis West have held two Cardio Tennis workshops for coaches and assistants and conducted numerous activations promoting the program.

Community Tennis



VOLUNTEER INVOLVEMENT PROGRAM

Tennis West recognises the hard work that volunteers contribute to our game. The Volunteer Involvement Program gives each affiliated tennis club the opportunity to nominate their club or someone within their club to receive awards at the Annual WA Tennis Industry Awards Night.

This year saw a very high standard of nominees from all over Western Australia. The 'Sportrophy Club of the Year' recognises the exceptional commitment and achievements of a Tennis West affiliated club. The 2011/12 recipient of this award was Alexander Park Tennis Club who since their establishment in 1932, has grown enormously in stature. The club is now formally recognised as a Regional Tennis Centre for Perth's Central East Metropolitan Region. The Club aims are to ensure that tennis excellence, developing champions and creating opportunities across all playing levels remain at the core of their facility, together with delivering the highest quality infrastructure and multi-functional attractions for the broader community.

This 2011/12 'Westec Volunteer of the Year' Award recognises the outstanding commitment and contribution of a senior member to their club. Volunteers are an essential part of any tennis club, and the very high standard of nominees for this year's award made the selection process a very difficult one for the Committee. There were two finalists for this award and the selection committee struggled to choose between the nominations. This resulted in a dual winner being awarded. Richard Price from Manning Tennis Club and Trisha Howe from Bunbury Tennis Club (pictured left) were both honoured with the title of the 2011/12 'Westec Volunteer of the Year Award' for their enormous contribution to their respective clubs and their continued dedication over many years.



President Greg Hutchison and the members of the Alexander Park TC

AUSTRALIAN OPEN TROPHY TOUR & FESTIVAL OF TENNIS

The inaugural Festival of Tennis was hailed as a resounding success by all who attended the event on Sunday November 27. Beyond the myriad of activities celebrating all things tennis, the event also housed the Australian Open Trophy Tour, which attracted over 500 people to the Centre to hold and have their photos taken with the Norman Brookes Challenge Cup (men's trophy) and Akhurst Memorial Cup (women's trophy).

All who attended the Festival were spoilt for choice, with Hot Shots Demonstrations, Cardio Tennis, Speed Serve, Bouncy Castles, Face Painting and Social Tennis just some of the many activities they could take part in. Participants were also treated to special guest appearances by Alicia Molik and Matt Ebden who spent several hours posing for photographs, signing

autographs and playing tennis with those taking part in the Hot Shots Demonstrations.

It was fantastic to have so many of the WA Community come together to get involved in tennis in some shape or form. To have Alicia and Matt involved throughout the day was a real treat and added to the WA tennis experience. All in all, it was a great weekend for tennis, and all those involved in the Festival look forward to another jam-packed event in 2012!



Australian Open Trophy Tour



COMMUNITY TENNIS DAYS

Tennis West supported by Healthway were involved in a number of Community Tennis Days, Fun Days and events during the 2011/2012 year, including coordinating the inaugural Festival of Tennis at the home of Tennis West; the State Tennis Centre. These community days allowed Tennis West to actively promote and encourage people to participate in Tennis. Tennis West provided a "Have a Go" station and a information booth which included details on how to take continue to participate in tennis at their local tennis clubs. Tennis West increased our exposure at these events, seeing 3610 participants compared to 2420 in 2010/2011.

Athlete Development



NATIONAL ACADEMY

Program Changes - 2012

The National Academy (NA) structure has changed in 2012 with both Michael Robertson and Callum Beale moving away from the National Academy environment to pursue new careers in Tennis. This left the opportunity for Adam Carey (National Academy Head Coach) and Andrew Roberts (National Academy Manager - WA) to build upon the excellent work and foundation that Michael, Callum and Len have put in place.

Adam and Andrew along with Tennis Australia share an individualised coaching philosophy that has led to the National Academy to become a more individualised program in 2012. Each athlete is now offered a minimum of three private oncourt sessions per week and all squads and strength and conditioning sessions have been lowered to the ratio of four athletes to one coach. Each athlete in the National Academy is assigned Adam or Andrew as their NA coach to lead their tennis development with the support of the Strength and Conditioning coach – Len Cannell. The National Academy continues to showcase a holistic approach to each athlete's development.

Tennis Australia is now investing more than ever in the National Academy pathway. All training fees for scholarship holders have now been eliminated and the National Academy offers a 50% - 100% subsidy of flights when athletes are travelling on TA International Tours or to domestic pro circuit events. The amount of subsidy an athlete receives depends on their current scholarship level.

Duty of Care Tours

The National Academy offers Duty of Care tours at the majority of National and International events that our athletes compete. Duty of Care tours allow the coaches to have direct contact with their assigned athletes to assist with the education of pre and post match preparation as well as offering coach support during the tournament and fostering independence in our athletes.

The National Academy coordinates all airfares, accommodation and transport for the athlete at these events.

International Tours

The National Academy has continued to have strong international representation this year with a number of our athletes selected to represent Australia at events in Asia and Europe.

In April 2012, Scott Jones was selected and assisted Australia to qualify for the 14's ITF World Junior Teams event in Malaysia while Maddison Inglis was selected as the alternate for the girls event. Scott and Maddison were later selected to participate on a seven week Young Stars Tour that consisting of 6 claycourt tournaments across Europe and a training week at the Tennis Australia base in Munich, Germany.

Rhys Johnson and previous NA scholarship holders –Daniel Alameh and Rob Allan have recently signed Division 1 tennis scholarships at Universities in America. American college tennis is a great pathway for athletes to continue their tennis development while maintaining their studies. A number of successful top ATP/WTA players have successfully used the American college system as a development pathway to professional tennis.

Significant Results

Previous NA scholarship holder – Storm Sanders was awarded an Australian Institute of Sport wildcard scholarship this year to continue her development under the guidance of AIS head women's coach – Nicole Pratt in Melbourne. In 2012, Storm reached the round of 16 at the Australian Open Juniors and was a qualifier at the junior event at Wimbledon. Storm won her first grade 1 ITF Junior in the Philippines this year and reached a career high junior world ranking of 63.

At the 2011 December Showdown, Western Australia won the Mary Hawton Trophy in the girls 14's teams event in Melbourne. The successful team consisted of Anja Dokic, Maddison Inglis, Ivana Vojinovic and Tennis West coach – Joe McCarthy. The girls defeated the number one seeded Queensland team in the final.

In February 2012, Scott Jones was a singles finalist of the 14's boys Nationals in Mildura, Victoria. Scott teamed up with fellow National Academy athlete – Jack Lyttle to win the boys doubles event.

The National Academy Team would like to thank you for your continued support. Day to day we strive to make the National Academy – Perth the leading program in the world.

Tennis West State Academy

The Tennis West Academy (TWA) is a program that assists in the development of elite juniors, aligned closely with the National Academy (NA). This program plays several important roles with respect to the athlete development pathway. The primary goal of the TWA is to transition players into the NA by fulfilling the necessary criteria. It also acts as the next progression for athletes graduating from the Talent Development Squad (TDS). Athletes up to the age of 16 can transition into the NA; however the TWA still provides a training environment for those athletes beyond this age who may continue to pursue a professional tennis career or endeavour to play college tennis in the US.

The TWA is headed by Len Cannell, who is also the strength and conditioning coach for all three academies. This ensures a seamless transition from one academy to the next with respect to the athlete's physical development. This year the TWA has introduced a second tier into its program to provide more opportunity for aspiring players. Players from the Talent Development program either transition to one of the two tiers of the TWA or to the National Academy. Having an underpinning junior program has ensured a constant flow of juniors moving through the pathway and into the State Squad, which in turn increases the chances of players moving even further through into the National Academy.

Term 1 of 2011 saw the resurrection of 'Camp Courage' (CC). Milo Bradley originally introduced CC as a selection camp back in 2003 and it continued for the next 4 years. CC has now evolved into 'cult status' with stories of previous years filtering through the academies. The goal of for this year's camp was to reinforce the values that the athletes created and to provide leadership skills. The main objective of CC is to expose athletes to what life can be like as a travelling tennis player and to equip them with skills that allow them to better handle adversity. There are many messages delivered through CC – not all are expected to be absorbed immediately, however over time we hope to create independent, responsible athletes that become 'master and commander'.

Athlete Development



TALENT DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

The Talent Development Program is a joint program between Tennis Australia and Tennis West. It has been established to identify and develop athletes between the ages of 7 and 12 years old. The program consists of a Talent Development Squad, Match Play days and Talent Development Camps.

Talent Development Training Squads

Tennis Australia and Tennis West provide two forms of training programs for talented juniors 12 years and younger within WA. The first of these is a 10/u program which is delivered every Wednesday morning at the State Tennis Centre. Each term there were approximately 30 players accessing the training program which is designed to engage young players further in our sport, and to add training volume to their current schedules. In order to adequately service this number of players, seven identified Talent Development Coaches were in attendance every Wednesday morning to support each players progress.

Each Tuesday and Thursday afternoon Tennis Australia and Tennis West staff also provide a Talent Development Squad for a select group of the state's most talent juniors aged 12 and under. Players are selected through a criteria which includes results, ranking and the endorsement of their respective private coach/s. The objectives of the squad are as follows:

- To bring together recognised players (through criteria and selection) to train together in a focused and competitive environment.
- Offer subsidised training.
- Increase the training volume of a player's schedule.
- Supplement the role of each player's personal coach.

Players from both programs populated the finals of local events throughout the year, and we expect to see the same throughout upcoming events. The focus for a number of our leading young players will soon shift to a national level with the Sydney National Championships held in September 2012. In conjunction with the work performed by each players personal coach, we are confident that these training programs will produce the next generation of talented WA tennis players.

Talent Camps

Throughout 2011/2012, five Talent Development camps were offered within WA. The camps are designed to bring together players, parents, and coaches for an all inclusive event where each stakeholder is provided a new experience and new information. These camps are conducted nationally with the vision to equip coaches with current information, to provide parents with suggested guidelines around their supportive role, and to offer players the opportunity to train with their peers in a focused environment.

Camp 1 - Perth - 3/4- 9-2011 Number of players - 32 Number of coaches – 16 Theme - Serving Skills and Drills

Camp 2 – Albany – 11/12-3-2012 Number of players - 19 Number of coaches – 3 Theme - Serving Skills and Drills

Camp 3 - Perth - 25-3-2012 Number of players – 27 Number of coaches - 15

Theme - Perceptual Development & Preparation

Camp 4 - Margaret River - 30/31-3-2012 Number of players - 26 Number of coaches - 3 Theme - Serving & Competition

Camp 5 - Geraldton - 23/24-6-2012 Number of players – 26 Number of coaches - 16 Theme - Perception, Serving, Weapons

National Talent Development Camp:

During May a host of Tennis Australia employees, privates coaches and aspiring tennis players gathered in Canberra for the National Talent Development Camp. This is the second year the camp has been delivered by Tennis Australia, and both years have been an overwhelming success for all involved. The camp was held at the Australian Institute of Sport, and provided a number of the nation's best 10 year old players a chance to train together whilst having exposure to new coaches and new training methods. The private coach of each player was linked with a Tennis Australia employee throughout the camp to share ideas, engage in professional development opportunities, and set updated training priorities for their respective athlete/s.

A total of 26 private coaches were involved in the camp, along with 32 athletes. Included were two WA coaches (Mark Leuba and John Roberts) and two WA athletes (Sam De Andre and Monique Barry). It is hoped that the skills and information obtained by coaches throughout the camp will filter back to their clubs and other pupils.

Coach Development



COACH PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

A key objective of Coach Development is to provide WA coaches with as many relevant professional development opportunities as possible. Given the motivations of coaches can often be very diverse, providing relevant educational platforms remains a challenge, however there is a strong commitment to assisting coaches in the development of both themselves and their businesses.

Local coaches were fortunate to have the opportunity to listen to Gary Stickler present during March of 2012 on the topic of 'Building Performance in to your Business.' Gary's success in the sport both as a coach and as a businessman has been well documented, and consequently he has a strong following from many coaches around the country. Gary spoke in detail around the various avenues local coaches can explore to build a performance element in to their existing business model. This professional development opportunity was attended by 18 of WA's leading coaches. In September of 2012 Narelle Sibte, fitness coach/advisor for Sam Stosur, will present to WA coaches on movement and footwork patterns.

COACHING AWARDS

During May, the 2012 Industry Sports Coaches Awards was hosted by the Department of Sport and Recreation. This night provided an opportunity to recognise our best performing metropolitan and regional coaches in all areas of our game. David Kerr, head coach in Albany, was awarded the Community Coach of the Year for his efforts to grow the sport within the Lower Great Sothern Region. David's coaching business covers all ages and standards, and he has a strong following in the region from the tennis community. Richard Sampson, Head coach at Sorrento Tennis Club, received a Commendation award for his efforts within the Hot Shots program (most number of registered Hot Shot's players through one venue).

MEMBERSHIP

The number of Tennis Australia Coach Members reached new heights in the 2011/2012 financial year. A total of 301 WA coaches registered with Tennis Australia over the past 12 months (129 Qualified Coach Members), which is a great endorsement of the services offered through the membership program.

As of July 1, 2012, all Tennis Australia Coach Members will be required to have a current first aid certificate. This has been mandated to ensure the safety and integrity of our sport, and to further professionalise the coaching industry.

DSR Local Coach Advisory Group

The Department of Sport and Recreation remains active in supporting coaches throughout the state of WA. One of the many initiatives offered by DSR is the establishment of a Local Coaching Advisory Group. The LCAG involves representatives from various sports and organisations which meet quarterly to discuss numerous topics relating the profession of coaching. Tennis will again be represented to ensure the challenges faced in coaching are heard, and any proposed outcomes can be applied directly to the tennis coaching fraternity. Key agenda items at the first meeting of 2012 included:

- Coach education structures.
- Immediate challenges faced by local coaches within the state.
- The possible role/s DSR can play in addressing coaching related issues.

Through these quarterly meetings we can expect a number of positive outcomes for tennis coaching within the state.

COACH EDUCATION

Introduction to Hot Shots Coaching Course
The first, and possibly most important stage of the coaching pathway is the Introduction to Hot Shots Coaching Course.
A concerted effort in WA has been directed towards ensuring coaches who deliver the Hot Shots tennis program at clubs and schools are skilled and providing a highly professional service. Hot Shots tennis is often a players first experience with the sport and therefore it is pivotal that the coaches delivery of this product is of the highest quality. Given this, through the first early months of 2012 three Introduction to Hot Shots Coaching Courses were offered, all designed to up-skill coaches who are wanting to deliver Hots-Shots within their local area. These courses were offered in both Perth and Geraldton, and a total of 38 coaches completed the course.

Recognising the need for more qualified and passionate coaches within the state, Tennis Australia and Tennis West also took this course to 30 Year 12 students at John Forrest High School in June. This initiative was hoped to spark an interest in these students to become further involved in the delivery of our sport, and consider a career in coaching. Given the important role Hot Shots will play in the development of our sport and the critical role the coach in its delivery, this course will be focus in 2012/2013.

Community Coaching Course

Over four days in April, 10 coaches (7 metropolitan and 3 regional) were involved in the Community Coaching Course at the State Tennis Centre. The course serves as an introduction into the fundamentals of coaching and basic tennis technique. Similar to the Introduction to Hot Shots coaching course, we hope the experience within the course encourages participants to become further involved with our sport and pursue additional coach education opportunities.

Coach Development



Club Professional Coaching Course

The highest level of coaching qualification currently offered at a local level is the Club Professional Coaching Course. The delivery of this course began in June 2012 and will last for 6 months. Participant numbers are purposefully kept low to ensure an individualised approach can be adopted for WA's next generation of coaches. The students will work through the following units over the coming months:

- Apply coaching methods to meet the needs of advanced junior tennis players
- Undertake coaching activities in accord with professional and legal standards
- Reflect and improve on professional coaching role and practice
- Plan coaching programs for advanced junior tennis players
- Coach advanced junior players in advanced stroke production and match tactics
- Develop physical and movement skills of advanced junior tennis players and prevent and manage injuries
- Coach athletes to apply principles on sports psychology
- Advise tennis players on equipment needs
- Utilise information technology to enhance a tennis coaching business
- Apply fundamental marketing and business concepts to a tennis coaching business

To further validate the profession of coaching it is imperative that coaches delivering tennis are qualified, well credentialed and current with their knowledge around all facets of the sport. Coach Development rightfully remains a priority for Tennis Australia and Tennis West.

The 100 Club



TENNIS WEST 100 CLUB

The 100 Club is a Tennis West initiative to raise funds for WA's talented and promising junior tennis players, to help meet costs and assist their development in the game. The 100 Club seeks donations of \$100 (or more) from individuals or groups, including WA's tennis clubs. In 2011/12 there were a total of seventy five 100 Club Members.

In 2011/12 100 Club scholarships were awarded to the following

Storm Sanders Daniel Alameh Tsige Lacey Erika Bollweg Sasha Bollweg Sara Stikic Charleen Tiwari Jack Lyttle Vuk Velickovic Rhys Johnson Anja Dokic Scott Jones Lachlan Casey Kristy Jones Astra Sharma Daniel Downey Alex Downey Tyler Tranquille

We have seen some exciting results from our scholarship holders over the past twelve months, including:

Jack Lyttle

- Semi Finalist: 14s Nationals, Ipswich April 2012 (Doubles)
- Winner: Optus 14s Nationals, Mildura, February 2012 (Doubles)
- Winner: North Beach Junior Classic, January 2012
- Winner: 16/U WA Junior Open, October 2011

Scott Jones

- Part of the Davis Cup preparation in Cairns trained with Australia's Davis Cup team in the lead up to their tie against Belgium.
- Winner: Optus 14s Nationals, Mildura, February 2012 (Doubles)
- Finalist: Optus 14s National Claycourt Championships, Mildura, February 2012
- Winner: 16/U South of the River Tournament, January

Sasha Bollweg

- Quarter Finalist: Optus 14s Nationals, Ipswich, April 2012 (Doubles)
- Semi Finalist: 2012 Midland Open, January 2012
- Winner: 14/U Rod Laver QLD Junior Championships, July 2011
- Finalist: 14/U Rod Laver QLD Junior Championships, July 2011 (Doubles)
- Winner: 16/U Rod Laver Lead in Gold, Brisbane, July 2011 (Doubles)

Storm Sanders

- Currently training at the AIS in Melbourne
- Winner: Mitsubishi Lancer International Junior Championships, Manilla, March 2012
- Quarter Finalist: ITF Malaysian World Tennis Championships, Sarawak, March 2012
- Finalist: Optus 18s Australian Championships, Melbourne Park, December 2011
- Quarter Finalist: Alice Springs Tennis International, September 2011

In January, four boys and three girls from Western Australia were selected as ballkids for this year's Australian Open:

Leighton Howard Aura Cerinza Matthew Marinoni Sally Partington Brooke Corbett **Bradley Waters** Mitchell Grey

This is a fantastic achievement considering the rigorous process Tennis Australia goes to involving hundreds of children across the nation. The 100 club generously supported these juniors with the expenses associated with staying in Melbourne for the two week tournament period.

In 2011/12 Tennis West held three functions for 100 Club members - the Tennis West Academy Training & BBQ, the Cardio Tennis Exhibition and the Legends Brunch, which were both very successful and helped to raise additional funds for the 100 Club.

Throughout 2011/12 we awarded over \$12,000 funding to assist our WA athletes in travelling interstate and overseas for competition. We are always looking to improve on this amount and continue to grow and give our WA athletes the best possible opportunity to reach their potential. Every dollar raised through the 100 Club goes directly to player development in

2011/12 100 CLUB MEMBERS

Dene Rundle Graeme Allan John Bougher June Rundle Milo Bradley **Barry Sanders** Janet Brown Cathy Smith James Cameron John Thorpe Joan Carney Allan Wall Allan Way Michael Webware Margaret Court

Rick Cullen Peter Eyres Rob Webster Wayne Firns Dean Williams Peter Field Clive Wilderspin **B.S Francis**

John Genovese Michael & Julie Green Michael & Sally Hendricks Keith Hince

Peter Hollow Lesley Hunt Ian Hutchison Shaun Johnson Judy Kozac Michael & Wendy Lee Margaret Lyttle

Arthur Marshall OAM JP Scott Marshall Ken McIntosh A.Michael & Sue Moore Jessica Moore Bill Munday

Rob Ockerby Paul Olivier Hedley O'Neil Noel Pearse Gary Penberthy Harry Phillips Bill Price

Ted Reiss Peter Rigg

Australind Tennis Club Bayswater Tennis Club Blue Gum Park Tennis Club Bull Creek Tennis Club City Beach Tennis Club Corinthian Park Tennis Club Dalkeith Tennis Club East Fremantle Tennis Club Fremantle Lawn Tennis Club Harvey Tennis Club Hensman Park Tennis Club Manning Tennis Club Midland Lawn Tennis Club Mount Lawley Tennis Club Nedlands Tennis Club North Beach Tennis Club Northam Lawn Tennis Club Reabold Tennis Club Safety Bay Tennis Club Sorrento Tennis Club South Mandurah Tennis Club

Alexander Park Tennis Club

Wembley Downs Tennis Club Tennis Officials WA Tennis Seniors WA Women in Tennis



REGIONAL TENNIS ZONES

Tennis West attended the Regional Tennis Zone Annual General Meetings though 2011/2012 which continued to be a great opportunity to meet with the delegates from each zone and discuss the state of tennis within their zone. Many zones face difficulty in filling new positions on the committee with dwindling volunteer numbers, therefore some zones deciding to rotate the books after two years to assist with the shared work load of tennis committees. Tennis West Community Tennis Manager and a Tennis West Board Member attended the meetings. There has also been some great tennis initiatives by clubs at our country clubs, with coaches servicing many clubs with coaching programs, good attendance at club events, both junior and senior and continued representation at closed country events coordinated by Tennis West.

The Regional Development Administrators (RDA's) have remained in the positions and remained enthusiastic, despite an increase in workload.

ZONE	RDA
Central Districts	Julie Mussared
Eastern Districts	Wendy Hooper
Great Southern	Kim Taylor
Lower Great Southern	Eileen Bairstow
Midwest	Janniel Harris
Moore Districts	Julie Taylor
Upper Great Southern	Dianne Warburton
South West	Alison Kirk

SUNSMART COUNTRY CLUB GRANTS

There were twenty-six clubs successfully apply for the \$250 Country SunSmart Grant throughout the 2011/2012 year. The grant supported events such as Festivals, Open Days, Tournaments, Mother/Daughter & Father/Son Tournaments and Group Coaching. In total, just over 1300 people were exposed to tennis and the SunSmart message through these events.

The following clubs received the Country SunSmart Grant: Dunsborough, Perenjori, Northam, Spalding, Chapman Valley, Cunderdin, Kukerin, Lawley Park, Lesmurdie, Kojonup, Moorine Rock, Kondinin, Goomalling, Moodiarrup, Beverley, Denmark, Bridgetown, Hyden, Toodyay, Tarcoola Park, Mingenew, Gnowangerup, Harvey, Moore District, Wagin and Dudinin.



Women in Tennis Active Girls Live-in Camp

The 10th annual Women in Tennis Active Girls Live in Camp took place from July 15-17, 2011. With the generous support of the D'Arcy Slater Foundation, the inaugural D'Arcy Slater Boys Camp successfully ran alongside the Girls Camp, allowing both junior boys and girls from country WA to participate in tennis and social activities over the 3 day weekend, including indoor rock climbing, movies and fitness circuits. The Camp is a participation-based event that focuses on retaining regional interest in tennis. It also serves as a foundation for beginners to the sport, particularly those children living in remote areas without access to a coach.

Nine regional coaches attended this camp and ran over 10 hours of tennis sessions with the 63 participants. The camp also served as a professional development opportunity for these coaches, and allowed them to exchange ideas and plans with the other regional coaches.

Tennis West would like to extend their thanks to the 9 coaches who assisted with the camp – Christina Ladyman (South West), Therese Chitty (Moore Districts), Susan Brayshaw (Melville-Palmyra), Jen Collins (Central Districts), Alexandra Collins (Central Districts), Brooke Koenig (Tennis West), Paul Oldfield (Tennis West), Keith O'Brien (Upper Great Southern), Brad Bassett (Upper Great Southern), Andrew Woodward (South West), and David Kerr (Lower Great Southern).

Finally Tennis West would like to thank both the Women in Tennis Committee and the D'Arcy Slater Foundation for their very generous support of this camp.







SUNSMART TENNIS IN SCHOOLS PROGRAM

The Country Tennis in Schools program followed the format of the MLC Tennis Hot Shots Tennis in Schools Program, and provided many kids from around regional Western Australia the opportunity to participate in tennis for the first time. The feedback from the teachers was that they want more tennis opportunities within their school.

A total of 1483 kids across 32 regional schools participated in this year's program which qualified coaches travel ling many kilometres to provide this opportunity to regional kids. The schools involved were: Kunnunurra, St Jos (Kununurra), Wickerpin, Kukerin, Wandering, Yealering, Goomalling, Caligri, Bolgart, Sacret Heart Goomalling, Dandaragan, Toodyay, Mount Manypeaks, Parklands, Great Southern Grammar, South Stirling, Frankland River, Kendenup, Mt Lockyer, Woodenilling, Chapman Valley, Mt Tarcoola, Corrigin, Narembeen, Babakin, Kulin, Hyden and Kondinin.

The program received positive feedback from coaches, teachers and students with several evaluation forms stating "we want more tennis". Many schools have since purchased the MLC Tennis Hot Shots equipment and continued delivery the program, which will continue to keep the children active through tennis.

REGIONAL ROADSHOWS

Tennis West with the support of the Healthway & the D'Arcy Slater Foundation was able to travel to regional and remote areas of Western Australia throughout the 2011/2012 year. The focus of the road shows this year was to provide children living in regional WA the opportunity to experience the National grass roots program MLC Tennis Tennis Hot Shots. Children took part in tennis in schools Tennis Hot Shots session, and the teachers were provided with resources to be able to continue the delivery of this program post our visit. These visits allowed Tennis West to service our affiliated club network whilst on the road. Road show participation numbers remained steady with 31 schools (2441 participants) in 2011/2012 compared to 36 schools (2476 participants) in the previous year.

Lower Great Southern/Upper Great Southern Zones: Albany, Denmark, Mt Lockyer , Mt Barker, Kendenup, Tambellup, Kojonup and Katanning

- 8 Schools (600 participants)
- Attended the Lower Great Southern AGM

Goldfields/South Coast Zones:

Kalgoorlie, Munglinup, Cascade, Grass Patch and Esperance

• 9 schools (638 participants)

Upper Great Southern Zone: Narrogin, Wickepin, Pingelly and Brookton

4 schools (375 participants)

North Midlands Zone: Mingenew, Morowa and Perenjori

• 3 Schools (216 participants)

Eastern District Zone: Hyden Tennis Club

• (62 participants)

Central District/Eastern District Zones: Kellerberrin, Merredin, Nungarin, Southern Cross, Moorine Rock and Bruce Rock

• 6 Schools (550 participants)

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT PROGRAM

In 2011 the Department of Sport & Recreation provided the Tennis West Community Tennis Team, through the Country Sport Enrichment Scheme, funding to support the tennis club and the local community in hosting Tennis Australia's Pro Tour Events. Tennis West coordinated a program around Community Engagement which included a number of activities that would promote and encourage the local community to support the event. The Community Engagement Program included a pre Pro Tour road show to the towns, with visits to local schools, assisting the club with local promotion including media and print, running a MLC Tennis Hot Shots School Holiday program during the event, holding Cardio Tennis sessions for adults and numerous other activites. The clubs coordinated additional events with support from Tennis West, with Esperance Tennis Club having a Twilight Shootout and Kalgoorlie Tennis Club holding a sponsors evening to thank local businesses for their support.

The pre pro tour road show, delivered by Tennis West staff allowed over 1,500 school children to participate in organised tennis clinics and activities. The school program was a particular success, with 8 schools in Kalgoorlie, and 12 schools in Esperance taking part in MLC Tennis Hot Shots Clinics and other tennis related activities. The Community Engagement Program saw over 700 people participate in tennis activities throughout the week, and the event was well supported by the community with 500 spectators across the week. The children also had the opportunity to meet some tour players and watch matches featuring local heroes Alicia Molik and Brydan Klein.

CBH COUNTRY ZONE CHALLENGE

Overall 39 teams from 8 Zones entered the event this year. The numbers in the juniors were down slightly in the 14 and 16 age groups however the seniors had a total of 6 teams in both A and B Division, which is up by 5 teams compared to 2011. This was largely due to the new format we offered for seniors this year. Teams consisted of 2 men and 2 ladies as opposed to 4 and 4. We felt that in the past smaller zones had struggled to field enough ladies for a team. Although the teams were only slightly greater in number the general consensus was it made for a better format.

As a rule The State Tennis Centre primarily hosts this event but to encourage the social side we chose to hold all the seniors events on grass court at Alexander Park Tennis Club. This was warmly received by all players. At the conclusion of play on the first day of the senior's competition a BBQ and drinks from the bar were offered and was well received by over 60 people. This was a good opportunity to have an informal chat with the players to discuss the declining numbers in Country Week and to put forward a couple of proposals and hear any other ideas. It was unanimous to keep Country Week but move the date to The Country Zone Challenge time slot in April. A decision was made to form a committee consisting of 1 delegate from each Zone to agree on the best format to suit the majority.

Finals Day concluded around 2.30 pm with a ceremony presented by Tennis West director Ray Collins to around 100 people. South West we're the overall winners of this year's event largely due to the strength in the junior teams.

Lee Oliver represented The CBH Group confirming their continuing support of the event in the future. Thanks to Alexander Park Tennis Club for the use of their courts and the clubs commitment to the event, in particular a special thanks to Ken Brown for not only his hard work but his genuine passion for the event.



Schools Classic - Regional

The 2012 Country Schools Tennis Classic had 132 teams take part in playoffs across 8 different Tennis West Regional Zones. This was a rise of 8 teams from last year, and is the biggest Country Schools Tennis Classic on record, with over 520 participants taking part. This is an extremely encouraging sign for tennis in Country Western Australia.

Twenty eight of these teams attended the Finals Event at the State Tennis Centre and Nollamara Tennis Club on March 30 2012. Again this was the largest Finals event on record, largely due to the rescheduling of the Final to a weekday, as well as increased funding from the D'Arcy Slater Foundation which assisted schools with the transportation costs of travelling to the Finals event.

The tennis throughout the play-offs and the Finals was of an exceptional standard, and all participants, teachers and parents were organized, enthusiastic and above all, passionate about their tennis.

Healthway and the D'Arcy Slater Foundation generously supported this event once again, and are largely responsible for its continued success.

The results of the 2012 Country School Tennis Classic Final are as follows:

Academy Plate: St Josephs Primary School, Bunbury Herbert Edwards Cup (Boys): Kearnan College Herbert Edwards Cup (Girls): Nagle Catholic College Mursell Shield (Boys): Bunbury Catholic College Mursell Shield (Girls): Mackillop Catholic College



Boys Mursell Shield Winners: Kearnan College



Girls Mursell Shield Winners: Mackillop College

D'ARCY SLATER CUP

The 2011 D'Arcy Slater Cup was held at the Bunbury Tennis Club on their magnificent natural grass tennis courts from 8th– 10th November. The event attracted 16 teams from 9 zones (76 participants) from around regional Western Australia (WA). This boy's event followed an identical format to the Women in Tennis Foundation Cup (as mentioned above) with some fantastic tennis played over the three day event.

The eventual winners were South West 1 on 174 points with second place going to Central Districts 1 on 145 points. Thomas Vellios (South West) defeated Colten Way (South Coast)) in a tough fought singles final. The 2011 WA D'Arcy Slater Cup team to travel to Sydney in January are: Thomas Vellios (South West), Colten Way (South West), Kevin Banwell (South West), Paul Sutherland (Midwest) and Team Manager Paul Oldfield.

The D'Arcy Slater Cup continues to be an important event in the regional tennis calendar and we would like to thank the D'Arcy Slater Foundation for the ongoing support of this event.

WOMEN IN TENNIS FOUNDATION CUE

The 2011 Women in Tennis Foundation Cup returned to the inaugural venue, the Busselton Tennis Club whereby the event began back in 2002. The event was held from the 6th - 8th November, attracting 13 teams with 56 participants. Teams travelled great distances from around regional Western Australia (WA) and the tennis played was of a high standard.

The girls competed in a Round Robin Doubles Event and an Australian Ranking (AR) Singles Event, with the results from both events contributing to the final placing of each team. The eventual winners were South West 1 on 163 points with second place going to Great Southern 1 on 143 points. Hayley McAlpine (Moore Districts) defeated Madelaine Muller Hughes (South West) in a tough fought singles final. The 2011 WA Women in Tennis Foundation Cup team to travel to Sydney in January are: Hayley McAlpine (MD), Madelaine Muller Hughes (SW), Sophie Tuckett (GS), Rachelle Maestre (Midwest) and Team Manager Brooke Koenig.

The Women in Tennis Foundation Cup continues to be an important event in the regional tennis calendar and we would like to thank the Women in Tennis committee for the ongoing support of this event.



REGIONAL TALENT DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

The Tennis West Regional Talent Development (RTD) program, proudly supported by the Department of Sport & Recreation WA, ran parallel to the Tennis West Academy and under the National Academy – Perth. Its objective was to develop regional players in conjunction with Tennis West Academy & to also provide greater opportunities for creating long term player development.

Eleven regional athletes were successful in meeting the criteria set and were awarded financial assistance to support their tennis development and associated expenses. As part of the scholarship, the athletes travelled to Adelaide to compete in two Australian Ranking (AR) Tournaments as part of a ten day tour during July 2012 with Brooke Koenig and Paul Oldfield, Tennis West Community Tennis Team, as team managers.

The following athletes met the criteria and were awarded scholarships (*indicates athletes whom didn't travel to Adelaide)

Corey Bavin (Harvey)
Mitchell Fraser (Busselton)
Mirrante Ryder (Bunbury)*
Tsige Lacey (Northam)
Madelaine Muller-Hughes (Australind)
Michael Offerman (Albany)
Samuel Galati (Australind)
Louis Asser (Bunbury)*
Colten Way (Esperance)
Yazlyn Way (Esperance)
Thomas Vellios (Manjimup)





TENNIS I FAGLIE

Tennis West acknowledges the continuing generous support of Brikmakers – naming rights sponsor of Tennis League.

Brikmakers 2011/2012 Summer Tennis League, with 69 clubs, 840 teams and 5,356 players, is without peer as Australia's largest interclub competition.

2012 Winter Tennis League demonstrated significant growth (400 teams, up from 347 teams in 2011). This may be in part attributable to an earlier season commencement and provision for clubs to nominate grass courts as a playing surface.

Growth in Midweek night competitions (particularly Thursday Women's Night with 78 teams) is indicative of a trend mirrored across Australia. This may be representative of an increasing preference for shorter competition formats that do not interfere with weekends.

The introduction of MLC Tennis Hot Shots Orange Ball and Green Ball Mixed Team competitions was an overwhelming success, with more than 40 teams engaging in Summer Tennis League. Tennis West's Community Tennis's commitment to the Tennis Australia Hot Shots programme has guaranteed an eager audience.

Sunday Junior Boys and Girls 18 Years & Under competitions, introduced to "recapture" an older age group earlier forgotten has also been favourably received.

Brikmakers State League winners were:

Men's Cottesloe Tennis Club
Women's City Beach Tennis Club
Junior Boys North Beach Tennis Club
Junior Girls Blue Gum Park Tennis Club

With feedback from clubs, Competition Planner (Tennis Australia's online competition platform) continues to evolve and demonstrate improved efficiencies.

Competition Tennis Rating (C.T.R), despite some early teething issues, has been widely accepted by players. C.T.R's provide a less subjective method for the grading of teams in divisions of similar standard. Western Australia leads the rest of Australia in its adoption of the rating programme.

Finally, a big thank you to Ms. Sue Kingston for her support and diligent approach to Operations, and to the Competitions Committee for its oversight and governance of Tennis League.

Tournaments

The Tournament Department underwent several changes this year.

Late in 2011 saw the re-structure of Competitions with these departments reverting back to their own respective Managers. Shane Smedley continued to manage the League area with the assistance of Sue Kingston and Jan Budden stepped into the Tournament Manger's role with the aid of Joe McCarthy.

The number of Sanctioned events held at The State Tennis Centre increased by 3 with the introduction of the Twilight AMT events to cater for those players aged 17 and over. 29 Sanctioned events were held in total, 7 of which were held in the Country Regions.

The Pro Tour was once again Held in WA with Esperance (sponsored by Cliffs Resources) and Kalgoorlie (sponsored by Goldfields)acting as host venues. Esperance put on a fantastic event with the official draw being held at The Bay of Isles Yacht Club. Around 200 people attended the evening. An auction was carried out with all the players drawn a from a silent bid.

The Tie Break Shoot Out was offered for the second year running with around 30 players taking part. Ben Mitchell and Casey Dellaqua were the champions of Cliffs Esperance International.

The Pro Tour concluded with The Goldfields International in Kalgoorlie and after 6 years the club ran the event with confidence and ease. WA's Brydan Klein and Casey Dellaqua were the champions.

2012 saw a major change with the restructure of formats for all Australian Ranked Events by introducing qualifying draws for OJT and AMT's. Players then losing in an OJT qualifying event automatically feed into a compulsory qualifying consolation with AMT losers having the option of a sign in qualification consolation. Main draw sizes were scaled down accordingly to either16, 24 or 32 draws. Reason behind this change was to even out match scores and create a more competitive competition.

MEDIBANK became the major sponsor for The Junior Development Series (to be known herein as MJDS). Bernard Tomic became the face of the campaign and Tennis Australia put together a package to give a player from each State the opportunity of time on or off the court with Bernard as a winner of the MJDS competition during The Australian Open. Tennis West put together a MJDS Regional Centre Series to run later in 2012 with players receiving a ticket for each event entered and the lucky winner receiving a trip for 2 to The Australian Open.

Pro Circuit

WA Open Super AMT #1

Once again the WA Open Super AMT, with a total prize pool of \$15,000.00, was conducted as a twilight event. A high calliber of players entered in both the Men and Womens draws with players from China, Japan, Israel, Turkey, Poland and Great Britain

60 men contested the singles with WA 'S own Brydan Klein coming up with the goods over Gavin Van Peperzeel from Queensland 6-2 6-4.

In the womens Singles Monique Adamczak from the eastern states defeated Haochen Tang from China 6-4 7-6(5). This event was a great warm up for players prior to heading to Esperance for the first Pro-Tour Event.

Results from the Mens & Ladies Doubles are as follows: Scott Puodziunas & Gavin Van Peperzeel (2) defeated Yilum Wang & Noam Yitchaki 6-1 6-4. Yilum & Noam made it through after the Gao brothers from China(1) withdrew through injury. Monique Adamczak & Sandra Zaniewska (2) defeated WA Bojana Bobusic & Melanie South (1) in an epic final 6-3 4-6 10-8.

Cliffs Esperance Tennis International

Esperance Tennis Club once again excelled themselves in hosting the Cliffs Esperance International. A players Auction was held in conjunction with the Mens & Ladies' Singles Draws at the Esperance Bay Yacht Club. Live streaming was available for the first time with players fighting for matches on court 1 so relatives overseas could watch their progress. The finals drew the crowds with over a 100 spectators for both singles and doubles events...

18 year old Queenslander Ben Mitchell No 1 seed defeated in straight sets 6-1 6-4 the No.2 Matt Reid. Ben was on a roll having recently taken the titles at Cairns and Alice Springs.

In the women's event, similarly claiming her third title WA's own Casey Dellacqua cruised past her doubles partner Olivia Rogowska from Victoria 6-2 6-1 dropping only one set in the semi finals against Sasha Jones(1) from New Zealand . In the Mens Doubles West Australian Brydan Klein & Jose Staham from New Zealand, Seeded 1 def the Chinese brother combo Peng & Wan Gao 7-5 6-3 & in the Womens Doubles



Casey Dellacqua together with Olivia Rogowska defeated Monique Adamzcak and Sandra Zaniewska 6-3 6-2.

Our Community Tennis Team hit the road for 2 weeks prior to the Pro Tour visiting schools promoting Tennis in their community. During the events they held daytime and evening coaching clinics for adults and school children alike.

Once again Esperance Tennis Club held a Tie-break shoot out, also sponsored by Cliffs Natural Resources with the winners taking home \$1000.00 each. 16 women & 18 Men contested this event with Brydan Klein and Svenja Weidemann taking out a cool \$1000.00 each.

Tennis West extends a big thank you to Karen Milligan & David Campbell for all their preparation to ensure the event ran smoothly. To Ann Welke for training and coordinating the ball kids and to Neville Welke and his band of volunteers, who were only too happy to help set up or chauffeur players throughout the event



Goldfields St Ives International

Brydan Klein seeded 4 came back with avengeance to win the Mens Singles event after battling though illness against No 1 seed Ben Mitchell 7-5 6-3. Perhaps Brydans toughest match for the event was against Matt Reid seeded 2 with Brydan pushing through to take the third set 7-5.

Casey Dellaqua seeded 1 for this event once again cruised through to win 6-2 6-2 against fellow Aussie Monique Adamczak thus proving she is ready to take that next step inside the top 100.

Casey claimed the Doubles title with fellow AIS student Olivia Rogowska 6-1 6-1 against a solid pair from China Xu Yi-Fan & Zhang Kai-Lin 6-1 6-1.

Shane Power together with the ladies of The Goldfields Tennis Club once again proved they know how to host an international event by catering to all the players needs from food to transport and entertainment.



2011/2012 NATIONAL TENNIS LEAGUE (NTL) PILOT

Tennis West was selected by Tennis Australia as one of three states to drive the pilot season of the NTL, which launched on October 19 in Perth, Adelaide and Melbourne.

The initiative had been likened to the Twenty20 of tennis, with a draft allowing players to head to other clubs, teams competing over shortened matches, and all matches in a round being played on a Wednesday night at the State Tennis Centre in Burswood. The event offers prize money and match payments for players, plus the incentive of heading to Melbourne Park for a showdown with the other states' during the second week of the Australian Open.

Nine of WA's top 10 men and eight of the best women committed to the series. The men's field attracted the state's best player, and Australia's #2 ranked male, Matthew Ebden, among notables such as Brydan Klein, Zach Itzstein and Rhys Johnson.

Talented Jess Moore headlined a women's field that has also attracted former world No. 8 Alicia Molik, Bojana Bobusic and promising youngsters Storm Sanders, Nina Catovic and Astra Sharma

NTL-WA Conference Men's teams included: Blue Gum TC "Macstiobhard" Hensman Park TC "Ian Hutchison Real Estate" Peppermint Grove TC "Gordon Davies Real Estate" Sorrento TC "Tennis Only" UWA/Reabold TC "Greenwich Giants" Wembley Downs TC "ERM Power"

NTL-WA Conference Women's teams included: Blue Gum TC "Cooling Towers WA" Cottesloe TC "Black Swans" Dalkeith TC "Gordon Davies Real Estate" Hensman/Midland TC "Ian Hutchison Real Estate" UWA/Reabold TC "Greenwich Giants"

National Tennis League WA Final marked the pinnacle of the season on Wednesday 23 November. In front of an impressive 450 strong crowd, the atmosphere was electrifying with both the Men's and Women's finals playing simultaneously on the centre courts of the State Tennis Centre, on a stunning balmy Perth night.

After an incredibly competitive Men's season, Peppermint Grove TC 'Gordon Davies Real Estate' and Wembley Downs TC 'ERM Power' stood tall as they prepared for battle. Peppermint Grove's captain and number 1 Brenton Bacon ambushed Daniel Alameh in a stellar performance, edging him out to take the first match (4-3) (4-3).

Charles Williams, representing Wembley Downs then upset Christian Prendiville (4-2) (4-1) to cap off a brilliant season for Williams playing in the number 3 position.

Veteran of the game Troy Hargreaves then edged out Wembley Downs Matt Roso in a thrilling tie-break 3rd set (4-1) (3-4) (7-3) to boost his team to an early lead, before teammate, 17 year old Robbie Allan shut Craig Campbell down (4-3) (4-2). Going into the Doubles, Wembley Downs were faced with the daunting feat: drop one set in either doubles matches or it's all over. Peppermint Grove swooped at the opportunity and won both doubles matches without dropping a set. Peppermint Grove cruising through with the win, 5-9-42 to Wembley Downs 1-3-34. Marking the first win for Gordon Davies Real Estate.

The Women's Final matched Hensman/Midland TC representing 'lan Hutchinson Real Estate' and Dalkeith 'Gordon Davies Real Estate'. The two teams met in the opening round of the National Tennis League, with Hensman/Midland TC taking the honours by just 7 games.

Dalkeith starlet Jessica Moore came out firing and took an early win over her inexperienced opponent Astra Sharma (4-1) (4-1) (7-5), followed by teammate Cassie McCloskey upsetting Teiwa Casey in a tight 3 set marathon (4-1) (1-4) (7-5).

With Dalkeith claiming the first two rubbers, it was time for Hensman/Midland TC to lift. This was achieved through young gun Sophie Allen-Fisher as she overcame Dalkeith's Adela Nazifovic in the number 4 position (4-1) (4-1).

Dalkeith's Marisa Gianotti was however too strong for Caitlin Cridland, taking the singles tally to 3-1 after claiming a 3 set triumph (3-4) (4-2) (7-5).

Hensman/Midland TC then put on a remarkable display of top shelf doubles, proving too strong in a gallant fight back to win both matches. With 3 rubbers a piece it then came down to a nerve racking count back. Dalkeith were announced victorious, claiming Gordon Davies Real Estate its second title for the evening. The win was by the smallest of margins, Hensman/Midland: 3-6-32 to Dalkeith's 3-6-33.

The inaugural National Finals were played out at Melbourne Park during the second week of the 2012 Australian Open. Matches kicked off early with intensity ferocious as little margin for error could be afforded if teams were to progress to the Final in the two pool format.

In the first of the men's fixtures, Victoria's Dingley TC managed to shake off WA's Wembley Downs TC four rubbers to two in a close encounter that included three match tie breaks. Unfortunately for the team and the event, Wembley Downs # 1 (and Australia's # 2 ranked player) Matt Ebden at the last moment was instructed by Davis Cup Captain Pat Rafter to sit out the Finals in anticipation of a possible February Davis Cup call up. Wembley Downs were also weakened by the withdrawal of Matt Roso through injury.

Peppermint Grove TC (WA) then had the daunting task of fronting Victoria's Kooyong TC. As the competition favourites, Kooyong stated their intentions early of adding a new trophy to their already impressive trophy cabinet, conceding only one rubber on the way to an emphatic win. Injury to Peppermint Grove # 3 Troy Hargreaves robbed the team of big game experience and he remains in doubt to captain the Australian 35's team to the World Tennis Seniors Championships in San Diego shortly.

Peppermint Grove TC then had to quickly refocus for their second fixture of the day, this time against South Australia's Somerton Park TC. The Sharks took out SA's edition of the NTL and this young team came to Melbourne Park with grand intentions. In what was the round of the day, the Sharks won by a solitary game, with leading WA players Brydan Klein and Brenton Bacon teaming up to win the top doubles and their respective singles matches.

SA's Rostrevor TC was rocked by the late withdrawal of gun player Colin Ebelthite, but accounted for Wembley Downs TC four rubbers to two. A couple of points were the difference at the three and four singles spots, with Venables and Williams both losing in tight match tie breaks.

Both Western Australian men's teams were now out of finals

contention.



Whilst the Kooyong men's team were warm favourites to take out the Men's title, the Kooyong women's team was less confident.

In the first of Wednesday's fixtures, WA's Hensman/Midland TC was battered and bruised by the classy Grace Park, winning only eleven games. Dalkeith TC's only success in their fixture against Kooyong was recorded by the top doubles paring of Jess Moore and Marisa Gianotti who easily accounted for the higher credentialed Peers and Wlodarczak.

Hensman Park/Midland TC received little respite in their second fixture of the day, against SA's Flagstaff TC, losing three matches in deciding match tie breaks.

The gods were smiling in a massive change of fortune for WA as Dalkeith accounted for SA's Trinity TC four rubbers to two. Moore and Gianotti continued their impressive doubles form and continued to lead from the front winning singles matches in deciding match tie breaks. Younger Genevieve McCloskey clinched the fixture for Dalkeith in the last singles spot.

The Men's Final was an all Victorian affair with Dingley TC up against tennis powerhouse Kooyong TC. In the women's section, Kooyong challenged Flagstaff Hill TC who spoiled a potential all-Victorian final party with a dominant performance over Grace Park in the last pool round to secure a place in the final.

In emphatic fashion, Kooyong TC delivered on their potential and clinched both men's and women's National Tennis League Finals.

Australian tennis legend Roy Emerson thrilled the gathering at the post match formalities, presenting trophies to the winning teams.

I take this opportunity to recognize the NTL-WA Conference Commission members Dean Williams, Callum Beale, Vanya Kelleher and Sue Kingston for their support over the season, and the team sponsors who made athlete participation possible.

<u>Leading Top 100 Australian ranked players who contested NTL Finals</u>

PLAYER	CLUB	AUSTRALIAN RANKING (Dec 31, 2011)
Emily Webley-	(Great Britain)	266 (WTA
Smith	Flagstaff Hill TC	Ranking)
Sally Peers	Kooyong TC	8
Melanie South	(Great Britain)	323 (WTA
	Grace Park TC	Ranking)
Jessica Moore	Dalkeith TC	16
Karolina	Kooyong TC	17
Wlodarczak		
Alison Bai	Grace Park TC	26
Ashley Keir	Flagstaff Hill TC	34
Astra Sharma	Hensman/Midland	39
	TC	
Marisa Gianotti	Dalkeith TC	41
Michaela	Kooyong TC	47
Capannolo		
Leah Daw	Trinity Gardens TC	57
Gussie O'Sullivan	Grace Park TC	66
Teiwa Casey	Hensman/Midland TC	84

PLAYER	CLUB	AUSTRALIAN
		RANKING
		(Dec 31, 2011)
Brydan Klein	Peppermint Grove	14
bi yaari kiciri	TC	17
John Peers	Kooyong TC	22
Andrew	Kooyong TC	43
Whittington	, ,	
Joshua Crowe	Rostrevor TC	93
PLAYERS UNAVAILABLE		
Matt Ebden	Wembley Downs	2
	TC	
Colin Ebelthite	Rostrevor TC	21
Jordan Kerr	Rostrevor TC	32
Luke Saville	Somerton Park TC	37
Jack Schipanski	Somerton Park TC	48

Facilities & Tennis 2020 Initiative



TENNIS 2020

Tennis 2020: facility development and management framework for Australian tennis outlines Tennis Australia's vision and approach to nurturing and advancing the prospects of tennis and its facilities in partnership with the state and territory Member Associations, clubs, government and other stakeholders.

The *Tennis 2020* document integrates TA's vision and strategies to deliver a sustainable and vibrant environment for tennis facilities and clubs for the period 2008 to the year 2020.

The Hierarchy Structure

Included in the 2020 strategy was a Facilities Hierarchy Structure as outlined below:

National Tennis Centres 20 Courts +

Regional Tennis Centres 16 Courts +

Large Community Tennis Centres (Sub Regional) 12 Courts +

District Tennis Centres 8 Courts +

Local Tennis Centres 4 Courts +

Each of these individual tiers have a list of selection criteria attached to them.

Western Australia's Regional Tennis Centres

METROPOLITAN

- North Metropolitan Region: SORRENTO Tennis Club
- Central West Metropolitan Region: REABOLD Tennis Club
- Central East Metropolitan Region: ALEXANDER PARK Tennis Club
- East Metropolitan Region: MIDLAND LAWN Tennis Club
- South Metropolitan Region: BLUE GUM PARK Tennis Club

COUNTRY

- Mid West Region: GERALDTON Tennis Club
- Wheatbelt Region: GOLDFIELDS Tennis Club
- Great South West Region: BUSSELTON Tennis Club

Western Australia's Sub Regional Tennis Centres

- North Metropolitan Region:
 - WEMBLEY DOWNS Tennis Club
- Central West Metropolitan Region:
 - o DALKEITH Tennis Club
 - o NEDLANDS Tennis Club
 - Central East Metropolitan Region:
 - BAYSWATER Tennis Club
 - MT LAWLEY Tennis Club
- East Metropolitan Region:
 - LESMURDIE Tennis Club
- South Metropolitan Region:
 - HENSMAN PÄRK Tennis Club
 - EAST FREMANTLE Tennis Club
 - o MELVILLE/PALMYRA Tennis Club

Progress

The Regional Partnership program has already brought significant benefit to active Partners in WA as well as having improved engagement with councils to focus on appropriate provision of tennis facilities in key locations. The value of the program is not only in direct financial assistance to participating centres, but is in the planned, aligned approach to the provision of tennis that all levels of government value so highly.

There have been some successes and information sharing between the group of Regional Partners and Tennis West/Tennis Australia, including the development of some priorities for Western Australian Regional Partners. These have resulted in the development of initiatives to benefit the Regional Partners and their wider regions.

The year saw a Regional Tennis Centre Hot Shots Challenge being introduced and has now lead to the centres hosting a Junior Development Tournament Series scheduled for later this year.

Tennis Australia has presented information to Regional Partners in order to engage the clubs and centres to fast-track development projects, plan for their regions and identify resources for this vital group.

Local Governments use the hierarchy of facilities to prioritise funding and to plan facility development. A workshop, organised by Adam Renfrey in his capacity as Places to Play representative to Tennis West, ensured that local governments understand the level of planning that Tennis has undertaken to assist them with funding prioritisation and project support.

The value of the program will increase over time, as other states and territories sign partners and the program grows. The benefits as a result of the programs and services being delivered by the Regional Partners will take time and requires a joint effort from Tennis West, Tennis Australia and the Regional Partners to bear fruit for the sport.

My Tennis



2012 saw the *My Tennis* membership application being officially launched in Western Australia. Together with Tennis Australia, the new training format was rolled out in the State in May. Training sessions will continue to be held every few months at the State Tennis Centre with individual club training provided where needed.

WHAT IS MY TENNIS?

My Tennis is a complete membership tool which club administrators can use to quickly and easily manage club memberships, generate membership reports and communicate with members.

CLUB BENEFITS

My Tennis has been designed to make life easier for club administrators, here's how:

- Easy access, simple to use and free to all affiliated tennis clubs within Australia. No software needs to be downloaded – My Tennis can be accessed online from any computer at any time.
- Players can renew their membership online, which means less time spent on administration for club committee members.
- No set-up or licensing costs this system is a benefit of affiliation with your state.
- Pay and play today: you can activate real-time credit card transactions, which means that memberships can be processed immediately, allowing your members to get on the court sooner. Also, clubs can still offer members the flexibility to pay by cash, cheque or EFT if required.
- Increased communication options to members including SMS and email.
- My Tennis records all transaction and member details, allowing you to produce detailed summary reports. Club administrators can quickly and simply generate transaction reports and player membership reports.
- Ongoing training and support in the form of a national helpdesk.

WA CLUBS ON MY TENNIS

SORRENTO Tennis Club REABOLD Tennis Club MIDLAND Tennis Club GERALDTON Tennis Club GOLDFIELDS Tennis Club BAYSWATER Tennis Club MT LAWLEY Tennis Club FLOREAT PARK Tennis Club

Sponsor Acknowledgements



TENNIS AUSTRALIA

Tennis Australia continued to be Tennis West's largest source of funding and support. The national body contributes wholly and partially to a number of Tennis Australia and Tennis West employees, and Athlete Development is substantially managed by Tennis Australia in WA.

Assistance is provided by Tennis Australia in various areas including programming, IT support, financial services, staff employment, and marketing, all of which is crucial to the continued success of Tennis West's work in Western Australia.

HEALTHWAY

Healthway continued to be a major funding partner of Tennis West, with their project encouraging people within the Western Australia (WA)community to activity participate in Tennis to improve their overall health and well being. The support of Healthway allows Tennis West to introduce the sport of tennis to the community through a range of program and events, and provides opportunities for ongoing participation throughout WA.

Tennis West promoted Healthway to the clubs and the community by providing ongoing education of various key health messages including SunSmart, healthy eating and drinking and smoke free venues. Healthway has generously provided Tennis West a two year funding agreement which has provided welcome stability to tennis participation programs within the community.

DEPARTMENT OF SPORT AND RECREATION

The Department of Sport & Recreation (DSR) remains a valued funding partner and supporter of Tennis West. The DSR Organisational Sustainability Program Triennial Funding program supports the delivery of Tennis West's Strategic and Business Plans and Organisational & Industry Development while providing opportunities and pathways for growth in participation and player development.

Through this three year funding agreement DSR also directly supports the Tennis West's High Performance and Talent Development program which target WA's best aspiring athletes and the Community Sport Engagement Program which supports tennis growth and exposure in Regional WA.

BRIKMAKERS

Brikmakers continued to be a major and highly valued Sponsor of Australia's largest Tennis League competition, with over 5,500 summer participants.

Brikmakers are signed on as major sponsors and we look forward to a promising and prosperous relationship with them.

The ongoing commitment from our sponsors has ensured the continued development of our sport and we extend our thanks to them all.

Australian Sports Commission Volunteer Involvement Program Indigenous Tennis Program

Burswood Park Board
Maintenance and landscaping of State Tennis Centre grounds

CBH Group CBH Country Week Carnival CBH Country Zone Challenge

Chambers Investment Planners WA Tennis Industry Awards - Major Sponsor Chambers Coaching Excellence Award

Constellation Wines Official Wine Supplier for WA Tennis Industry Awards Night

D'Arcy Slater Foundation D'Arcy Slater Boys Camp - for boys in regional WA Country Road-shows D'Arcy Slater Boys Camp – for boys in regional WA

KPMG Tennis West Auditor

LifeCare Provision of Massage Therapists and Sports Trainers for Perth ITF Event

Linneys Linneys Women's Tennis League

Motive Travel Volunteers Cocktail Party

Snap Burswood Official Printer for WA Tennis Industry Awards

Sportrophy Official Trophy Supplier Sportrophy Club of the Year Award

Sport Surfaces Sport Surfaces Junior Tennis Star Award

Westec Electrical Volunteer of the Year Award

Wilson Official Tennis Ball supplier

Women In Tennis Active Girls Live In Camp Women In Tennis Foundation Cup, for girls in regional WA









Women in Tennis



It gives me great pleasure and pride to provide our very informative W.I.T. report for this tennis season of 2011 to 2012.

We have had a very busy year and our committee comprising of Bobbie Edwards, Bev Leighton, Pam Smith, Deanne Maloney, Julie Green, Gaye Hayes, Kerry Edwards, Delys Dear, Wendy Bloor, Maureen Patman, Margaret Smith, Martha Stengel and myself Trish Ross, have worked extremely hard at all fund raising events, the first one being the W.I.T. fashion parade held on the 5th September at the Wembley Downs Tennis Club. This event attracted 120 ladies with the inclusion of a few gentlemen. The Dalkeith Tennis Club were congratulated on selling a record of 50 tickets for the event.

The food and champagne was excellent on the day and the models were tennis players representing all clubs in the metropolitan areas. The boutiques supplying the garments were – *Spectator Sports, Claremont Sports, Tennis Only* and *Chateau Boutique* from Shenton Park. The door prizes were donated by *Oak Valley Truffles*.

The 3 major prizes were donated by *Linney's of Subiaco;* 1st prize being a beautiful pearl necklace, 2nd prize, a pair of pearl earrings and 3rd prize, a voucher worth \$250.

The morning was a tremendous success and a very rewarding fundraiser, these funds will eventually be put back into young ladies sponsorships to further their tennis careers.

W.I.T. have been sponsoring several young ladies recently; Astra Sharma, who made the final and a quarter final in the 18/under ITF events. Anja Dokic was a doubles finalist in the 18/under ITF event and Erika Bollweg competed in the 12 and under nationals and got valuable experience. Erika is still very young in this age group and was the best performer for her age. Storm Sanders was a first round loser at this year's Wimbledon.

On 7th September 2011 we received word that the long standing CEO of Tennis West, Andrew Stanbury, was leaving and Michael Robertson was taking on the role. We wished Andrew all the best for his future and welcomed Michael on board as the new CEO of Tennis West. A short time later we lost Deanne Maloney from Tennis West as well. She did an excellent job during her time with the organization and was always willing to assist with pennant queries and advice. Luckily for us she has remained on the W.I.T. committee and we are very pleased about that.

Annual Gala Day

On 19th October we held our annual fundraising gala day at 5 local tennis clubs; East Fremantle, Leederville, Maylands, Nedlands and North Beach. The events ran smoothly and the weather was very kind to us. A great day was had by all and the volunteers from every club were congratulated for their extremely hard work, not to mention all the W.I.T. committee members. We also appreciate the extra work that club groundsmen put in to getting the courts in tip-top condition for us before most of the clubs' opening days.

For this gala day event we would like to take this opportunity to thank our very generous sponsors; Andrew Firman for *Hyundai Hopman Cup* tickets and Tennis West, plus *Usana Nutritional Products*. We are very grateful to these sponsors.

I would also like to point out that our gala day this year is Wednesday 17th October 2012.

W.I.T. are annual sponsors for the Foundation Cup which was held in Busselton on 6th to 8th November.

The event attracted 13 teams comprised of 56 participants from around regional WA. These regions were; Central Districts, Lower Great Southern, Moore Districts, South West, Midwest, Great Southern, Upper Great Southern and South Coast.

The teams' event winner was South West 1 and the teams' event runner up was Great Southern 1 (thanks must go to Deanne for attending as the W.I.T. represent at the event). The team's winners then travelled to Sydney in January 2012 and competed in a national foundation cup team challenge. The WA team competed against NSW, QLD, SA, Victoria and Tasmania. The event was well run by the Fed Cup Foundation and supported by Tennis Australia.

The WA athletes were: Hayley Mcalpine, Madelaine Muller Hughes, Sophie Tuckett and Rachelle Maestre. The girls finished in 5th place after very fierce competition.

LEGENDS BREAKEAST

W.I.T. in conjunction with Tennis West, once again held the Hopman Cup Tennis Legend's brunch on Thursday the 5th January 2012 with special guest Pat Cash and emcee, Peter Vlahos. The only person in the room that upstaged Pat Cash was Mrs Lucy Hopman as she posed for endless photos and chatted to adoring fans throughout the morning. The W.I.T. committee presented her with a gold and pearl brooch, from *Linneys* and she was delighted with it.

There was a record of 320 people attending the brunch. We were also treated to a panel featuring WA sweetheart Jessica Moore and up and comers Scott Jones and Jack Lyttle. Pat cash was most charming and answered a few questions and gave some very interesting insights into his career which everyone enjoyed. The brunch was scrumptious and supply was plentiful.

Helen Waters Doubles Championships

On Wednesday the 4th April our 12th annual Helen Waters Doubles Championships was held at the Belmont Park Tennis Club.

The weather was a little overcast and a small amount of rain appeared, but needless to say the day was very successful and we had 61 pairs with an inclusion of ladies from Yerecoin and Rockingham. Everyone enjoyed a wonderful array of food and nibbles and many thanks must go to the ladies from Belmont and a few gentlemen for their hard work manning the kitchen all day. Of course, also to the W.I.T. committee for organising an extremely well run day that everyone enjoyed very much. Thanks must also go to Leon Dhu for an efficient running of the event and Tennis Seniors for supplying the tennis balls at a discounted cost.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank our ongoing and generous sponsors for their kind donations for the raffle on the day; Hayden Gibson from *Tennis Only*, Tennis West and *Siennas Restaurant*

Many, many thanks must also go to our major sponsor of this championship who has been sponsoring this event for many years; Gordon Davies, a professional (real estate agent) in the western suburbs. He continues to give great support in the tennis community and we are very grateful to him. Gordon came along on the day to present the prizes.

Michael Robertson gave a very informative speech and advised everyone what was happening in the tennis world and to thank W.I.T. for their ongoing support of funding for young ladies in their tennis careers.

TENNIS INDUSTRY AWARDS NIGHT

On the 27th April my husband and I attended the 2012 Tennis Industry Awards Night held at the South of Perth Yacht Club which was a roaring 20's night and costumes were encouraged to be worn.

It was an amazing night with plenty of entertainment and the food was excellent. The fashion parade for the best dressed was a lot of fun and there were prizes for the best dressed on the night.

Women in Tennis



The emcee for the night was Channel 7's Natalia Cooper. It was certainly one of the best nights they have had. Acknowledgement was made to Deanne Maloney who had resigned from Tennis West after 8 years.

ACTIVE GIRLS LIVE IN CAMP

The 11th annual W.I.T. active live in camp was held this year from 13-15 July in Perth. Thirty-three girls from 17 different regional clubs all made the trip to perth for 3 days of tennis coaching and social activities.

The camp's activities included at Lords Sports Centre were; tennis, basketball, volleyball, netball, soccer and mini tennis. Younger participants on the Friday night were taken to *Sizzlers* and the cinemas, whilst the older participants stayed at Kent Street College for a night of pizzas and DVDs. On the Saturday night this arrangement was reversed.

They received some very professional tennis coaching from the Tennis West high performance coach, Callum Beale who took impromptu lessons with participants to give them a taste of the training that elite junior tennis players undertake at the academies.

At the State Tennis Centre parents were introduced to an introductory coaching course, which enabled them to up-skill themselves and gain some valuable practical experience to take back to their respective clubs. This was a very valuable experience as several letters stating such have been sent to Tennis West.

Our very own treasurer $\operatorname{\mathsf{Pam}}\nolimits\operatorname{\mathsf{Smith}}\nolimits$ went along to support the event.

W.I.T. are available throughout the year to offer sponsorships and assist country clubs to help young junior girls. They can apply on line on the W.I.T. website, under the umbrella of Tennis West.

Before giving my closing address, I would like to give my sincere thanks to the staff present and past at Tennis West for always being there to support us and a very big thank you to all the ladies on our committee of W.I.T. who are always there to give their sincere support for the young ladies of our State who wish to succeed in their tennis careers. Thank you one and all. We are all looking forward to a very busy and fruitful tennis season and to working closely with everyone at Tennis West.

In conclusion I would like to welcome all new members onto our committee and thank any retiring committee members for their contribution in the past. I wish you all the best for the future.

Thankyou

Trish Ross

President: WIT Committee



Tennis Officials Australia – WA Division



2012 wow - it seems as though it was only a short time ago that Matt Hayes was presenting his report. On that note I would like to thank Matt for his input as president of TOAWA over the last 3 years and wish him well.

This year has been one of change and time will tell whether these changes were for the better or worse.

Three months into the year we had a change in our Officiating Development Coordinator. Sharon Kirkaldy, the incumbent, resigned and she was replaced by Jill Sheridan who as a result of taking up the position of the new ODC had to relinquish her position of Secretary of TOAWA and I would like to thank Jill and acknowledge her contribution in this role.

Also we have had changes to the running of the Hopman Cup as we all are no doubt aware. Tennis Australia has now been charged with running all aspects of the Hopman Cup and it is at this stage I would like to, for the record express the gratitude and thanks of TOAWA to Paul McNamee and his crew for the great way they ran the tournament for the last 24 years. Also we finally have a new venue for the event. A new management crew, a new venue so, onwards and upwards as the saying goes!

The final change that is in the wind so to speak, is the absorption of all state boards of officiating such as ours into one unit being run by TA. I re-state that this is currently 'in the wind' however if I am made aware of any further developments I will be sure to let the membership know. I will be attending a National Strategic Forum meeting on 28th July after which I hope the situation will be made clear.

The high quality of our officials has continued to get recognition, with a number of our members selected to officiate at high level tournaments around Australia. Some of these include:

- Josh Carter chair umpiring at professional circuit events.
- Matt Hayes selected for Davis Cup.
- Trevor Mitchell selected for Davis Cup.
- Jeromy Jones selected to chair Junior Davis & Fed Cups.
- Several WA umpires officiating at Australian Open, including first-timers Ali Caglayan, Lucian Jonescu and Rob Noseda.

We farewelled, albeit temporarily, Josh Carter who is now strutting his stuff on the courts of Europe and it is my understanding that he will be travelling and officiating so all the best Josh, do keep in touch and send us regular updates. Owing to his wanderings Josh has decided not to re-nominate for his position on the Board of TOAWA, so Josh many thanks for your input and we look forward to seeing you back here soon (we have seen you from time to time on Foxtel!).

We welcome all of our new officials this year and look forward to Jill (as ODC) keeping the momentum going in the recruitment and retention of officials. This I believe is an area that the ODC should be concentrating a majority of their effort on. From the current crop of trainees we hope to be able to congratulate some if not all of them on becoming full members once they do the necessary work and get accredited.

I would like to congratulate all those officials who were on the line crews for the final of the Hopman Cup this year for the perfect performance. I call it a performance because I cannot think of any other words to describe how well we did. So much so that the Chief of Umpires Geof Palmer was physically moved to tears when he came into the umpires room at the end of the tournament to congratulate everyone involved. So once again, well done and boy, have we set a high standard so now all we have to do is do it again and again and again!!

At a local level, the TOAWA Board had a busy year. This season we reinstated a minimum work policy for acceptance to Australian Open and Hopman Cup, and on this note members need to be aware that if they are unable to comply with these requirements the onus is on the individual member to communicate this to the Board prior to nomination/recommendation/selection for events. For those who were not present at Hopman Cup and The Australian Open this year, it was made very clear to all members that if you did not do the requisite or sufficient number of officiating days, selection would be in jeopardy. Also may I remind members that the Board of TOAWA recommends, but does not make selection for HC/AO. Further it needs to be pointed out, selection for a tournament depends on the minimum requirements as prescribed by the tournament organiser and what grading level you are at. Hence, unless you work and are evaluated, your grading will not be able to progress to a level where you are eligible to be recommended, let alone selected.

Following the presentation of this report there will be awards made for the following categories:

Official of the Year: Des Michael

Excellence in the Chair (Norm Cunningham Shield): Josh Carter

Service to the Association (Dawn & Sandy Hay Tray): Rob Noseda

Novice of the Year (Alf Chave Trophy): Joel Moss

At a Board level, we had some new faces and musical chairs in roles this year. At the 2011 AGM there were no nominations for the role of Secretary, so Sue Tribe and Trevor Mitchell agreed to "caretake" the role until a volunteer could be found. In July, Jill Sheridan volunteered to take over the duties of Secretary (Trevor had decided that work and family and Secretary of TOAWA was too much for our overworked and underpaid principal, bless him!!) so Jill relinquished her recent position as Vice-President. Trevor Mitchell then agreed to take on the VP role and Dawn Hay was welcomed back to the board as an Ordinary Member. Shortly afterwards (as noted above) due to her appointment as ODC in October Jill Sheridan was required to resign from the Board, leaving the Secretary role vacant once again. Sue Tribe again became "caretaker" Secretary helped by Chris Crosby agreeing to become the Minute Secretary for the remainder of the year. Jeromy Jones was elected to fill the casual Board vacancy caused by Chris' elevation. Unfortunately, Jeromy had to relinquish this position in April, and it was decided not to replace him due to the impending AGM in June.

Now I would like to thank Sue 'Caretaker' Tribe for her willingness to jump in when required and boss us all about – seriously though 'Thank you Caretaker'.

Tennis Officials Australia – WA Division



I would ask more members to step forward and put their hands up to join the Board. We need some new blood and new ideas, after all, the future of officiating is in your hands so please feel free to contribute - basically what you get out of officiating is what you put in.

Finally I would like to thank all the members of the Board of Management this season for their wonderful support, and I would also like to wish all of our members every success for the coming season, and thank them for their committed and unswerving support of TOAWA.

Des Michael President TOAWA.



Tennis Seniors Western Australia



In 2011/12 Tennis Seniors WA (TSWA), under the leadership of Kevin Fletcher, maintained its regular activities including competition and social events.

TSWA hosted the 2012 Australian Seniors Championships at Robertson Park in January and under the Chairmanship of Michael Harris, it was very successful. Our regular band of volunteers gave their time and expertise to make the event an enjoyable one for all who participated. Many local competitors were successful in the wide age-range of events.

The facilities at Robertson Park continue to be improved, with the construction of the new patio providing protection from the various weather elements and the rejuvenation of the grass courts. Tennis Central under the stewardship of Jason Roberts continues to increase the centre's patronage.

The City of Vincent, Department of Sport and Recreation and our various sponsors continue to support our activities.

Moira Durkin of Mt Lawley Tennis Club was named the Senior of the Year, recognising the many years of her untiring work and ongoing success with the midweek ladies events.

The work of the outgoing Committee is recognised and appreciated by the members.

TENNIS SENIORS AUSTRALIAN CHAMPIONSHIPS

When other States were reluctant to host the 2013 Championships scheduled for Canberra, a quick ring around to the 2012 Committee resulted in a "Yes we can" host a second championship event in succession. Mr Gary "Mac" MacDonald is chairing the almost new committee and all areas are progressing well. With the great financial success of 2012, this new Committee is working at making 2013 just as successful.

FINANCE

Our Treasurer, David Legge has again reported on a successful year. We thank David and his team for ensuring the finances of Tennis Seniors are kept efficiently and up to date.

Membership

Unfortunately, when we gain a few members, we also lose a few. Thank you to Pam Smith and Margaret Smith for doing everything possible to promote our membership.

PENNANTS

Tuesday night Tyrepower summer pennants continues to grow and this year we had 18 teams, necessitating 3 matches being played at away venues. If we can continue to grow we can get back to regular home and away seasons but with the bulk of teams at Robertson Park.

For the Saturday afternoon winter pennants, we have combined with the Catholic Lawn Tennis Association based at Manning Tennis Club. In this first trial year, both venues are hosting 19 teams of 3 men and 2 women between them. It is hoped that both Associations can grow from here.

ROBERTSON PARK

Grounds

Rob Comley continues to manage this section with help from Dennis Ruhle when work commitments allow. Our major concern at the moment is to improve the back bay of grass courts particularly from courts 30 to 36 in readiness for the 2013 Australian Championships.

House

Isobel Lockyer capably looking after this area until recently when she relocated to Shark Bay for business reasons. Thankyou for your input to Tennis Seniors Isobel and we hope you continue to be a member and promote the seniors cause.

SECRETARY

John Amor has continued in this role and has carried out his duties quietly and efficiently. John's use of words often has him rewriting many of the reports that I have to do. It is a pleasure to work with John and I thank him for his continued input.

SCHOOL MATCHES

Rob Ockerby organised weekly matches against the private schools. The tennis at these matches is very good with the "young ones" up against the "old ones" followed by afternoon tea.

SPONSORSHIP

Rob Ockerby has continued to seek sponsors in an area, which has "tightened" up. It is a sign of the times that fewer companies are donating / sponsoring events with lots of dollars. It is easier to get 10 @ \$200 than to get 1 @ \$2000. All committee and members are urged to assist with any help or leads regarding sponsors.

We thank all who have helped in sponsorship / donating to Tennis Seniors. The Bendigo Bank in North Perth has given us community grants, which we used for the purchase of a cash register and glass washing machine.

SOCIAL MATCHES

Pam and Cecil Gardiner are still promoting our cause through social matches. There is a possibility this coming year to host or visit country centres.

TOURNAMENTS

This area will be affected during 2012 / 13 due to the unavailability of the back row of courts from June. As there are only seven grass courts available, any tournament would be conducted on grass and synthetic surfaces. We may be able to hold more tournaments in the summer months. Bobbie Edwards is looking after this area and would welcome any input.

Social & Catering

Rhonda Fletcher covers this area with her large band of helpers. Thank you for all your hard work in keeping players all well supplied with refreshments during championships and social events.

Tennis Seniors Western Australia



VETSCENE

This position reverted back to Debra Kirk and with the help from Tennis West staff, the Vetscene has been well received by all members. Tennis West has assisted with the printing of the Vetscene and we thank them for their help.

WFBSITE

The website has been set up with the assistance of Tennis West. www.tennis.com.au/seniorswa. Any member experienced in this field would be most welcome to help keep the site up to date with current information.

RAD

The bar continues to be a profitable part of Tennis Seniors. From June 2010 to June 2011, the turnover doubled and has continued to grow since. Many thanks to Jhil Taylor and Rhonda Fletcher, our official Bar Managers for their extra hours of work in the bar.

ALISTRALIAN CHAMPIONSHIPS 2012

WOW! What a great success. Everyone who participated either by playing or volunteering enjoyed themselves. All areas ran smoothly and the compliments we received from all made the effort put in all the more rewarding. The championship committee chaired by Michael Harris is to be congratulated.

COURT MANAGEMENT

This area suffered some knocks during the January 2012 championships and Michael Maartensz and his staff know the situation and are working to have the courts at their best for the championships in January 2013.

LEASE AGREEMENT

Tennis Seniors has taken up the option of a further five years lease on Robertson Park with the City of Vincent commencing 1 September 2012.

SENIOR OF THE YEAR

This award was bestowed on Rob Comley for the 2011-12 season. Over many years Rob has used his farming experiences to create / solve / remedy or fix things that crop up around Robertson Park. Thank you Rob for a job well done.

Kevin Fletcher President – Tennis Seniors WA



State Tennis Centre



The exact future of the State Tennis Centre (STC) still remains uncertain in respect to how tennis fits into the government's plans for the area.

The CEO along with the Board have been in regular contact with our partners at the Department of Sport and Recreation, and we strongly believe that the STC will remain an integral part of a greater Burswood sporting precinct.

The STC remains home to a number of important national and state programs. National Academy Perth, which is one of five national academies across Australia continue to develop some of our brightest prospects while the Tennis West State Academy and the Talent development squad conduct weekly training throughout the school year for the state's best up and coming players wishing to transition into the national program. WA's home of tennis as usual staged a myriad of other tennis events, large and small, including the WA Open, a series of Hot Shots Challenges and a new pilot program on behalf of Tennis Australia, the National Tennis League.

Once again a select group of coaches and players representing China Tennis came to Perth, training at the STC. This short intense visit incorporated sharing training and coaching methods and gave us the opportunity to showcase a number of the Perth metropolitan areas top attractions. China Tennis is keen to expand the relationship and our vision is that a new upgraded STC will drive not only our sport locally but help attract more international visitors.

The centre again played host to a number of Hopman Cup events, including the annual Pro Am event that sees the stars of the Hopman Cup play alongside local sponsors and other stakeholders. It is also used as the practice venue for the players through the course of Hopman Cup.

We remain pleased that the centre is used regularly by a number of schools, notably Trinity College who base a full tennis program at the venue in terms 1 and 4, that utilises the courts up to 6 days a week.

The functions business at the STC continues to grow enjoying a busy year not only with existing clients but also with new ones. Tennis West, oversaw a net financial result that exceeded the budgeted result by cutting unnecessary cost and innovating in a number of areas. Many our corporate clients expressed an interest in locking in more bookings, however juggling the needs of our primary stakeholders and the sport first, demand care in how the venue is utilised.

Maintenance costs of the STC remain a concern and in view of the uncertainty surrounding the STC, management refrained from any extensive capital works. The courts remain in adequate condition for the short term however we are motivated to upgrade all the courts to "true blue" in line with State Tennis Centres across the nation.

Office Bearers, Life Members & Committees



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

President (resigned April 2012) Dean Williams

Michael Lee Senior Vice President

Acting President (commenced

April 2012)

Junior Vice President Jim Davies

Acting Senior Vice President

(commenced April 2012)

Bill Price Treasurer Wayne Firns

Acting Junior Vice President

(commenced April 2012)

Ray Collins Director Hayden Gibson Director Loretta Hughes Director Siobhan Drake-Brockman Director

LIFE MEMBERS

Alan Hicks OAM Dene Rundle **Barry Sanders OAM** Harry Spilsbury Clive Wilderspin

HON AUDITOR

KPMG

DELEGATES TO TENNIS AUSTRALIA

Dean Williams (resigned April 2012)

Jim Davies

Michael Lee (commenced April 2012)

STAFF

Chief Executive Officer

Andrew Stanbury (resigned August 2011)

Michael Robertson (commenced September 2011)

Financial Controller Elaine Campbell

Community Tennis Manager

Brooke Koenig

Community Tennis Officer

Elle Mazza

Community Tennis Officer

Paul Oldfield

Marketing & Events Coordinator

Aly de Souza

Facilities Officer

Vanessa Brown

Competitions Manager

Shane Smedley

Tennis League Assistant – P/T

Sue Kingston

Tournament Manager

Jan Budden

Tournament Operations

Joe McCarthy

State Academy-Head Coach

Len Cannell

Talent Development Coach

Andrew Roberts (resigned January 2012)

Functions Manager

Julie Wilson (resigned January 2012)

Elaine Campbell (commenced February 2012)

Functions Assistant-P/T

Kira Duckworth

Maintenance Officer - P/T

John Papa

Reception - P/T Sharon Lampard

Shelly Pascoe

Customer Service Officers - P/T

Lucy Moss

Francis Soale

Sam Ridgeway

COMMITTEES

Finance

Bill Price (Chairperson)

Andrew Stanbury

Michael Lee

Dean Williams (resigned April 2012)

Competitions Committee

Hayden Gibson (Chairman)

Shane Smedley

Deanne Maloney

Henry Willis Ken Brown

Loretta Hughes

Sue Kingston

Awards Night Committee

Loretta Hughes

Elle Mazza

Aly de Souza

Women in Tennis

Trish Ross (President)

Bev Leighton (Advisory Vice President)

Pam Smith (Treasurer)

Bobbie Edwards (Secretary)

Deanne Maloney (Midweek League Representative)

Wendy Bloor

Kerry Edwards

Julie Green

Jan Hatch

Gaye Hayes

Delys Dear

Office Bearers, Life Members & Committees



AFFILIATED ASSOCIATIONS

Tennis Officials Australia – WA Division
President: Matt Hayes
Secretary: Trevor Mitchell
Treasurer: Sue Tribe

Tennis Seniors Western Australia

President: Kevin Fletcher
Secretary: John Amor
Treasurer: David Legge
Vice President: Rob Comley
Patron: Clive Wilderspin
Committee: Rob Cockerby

Rhonda Fletcher Isobel Lockyer Pam Smith Margaret Smith Bobbie Edward Colin Griffin Jhil Taylor

Significant Achievements



Australian Ranking: WTA Ranking: 101

Singles

2011 VM Loud Bendigo International Champion 2011 Latrobe City Tennis International Champion 2011 Goldfields St Ives Tennis International Champion 2011 Cliffs Esperance Tennis International Champion Champion

2011 Darwin Tennis International 2011 Cairns International Champion 2011 Bundaberg Tennis International Champion 2012 Australian Open R64 2011 French Open R128

Australian Ranking: Current ATP Ranking: Current Member of the Davis Cup Team

2012 BNP Paribas Open, Indian Wells R16 2012 Australian Open, Melbourne R64 2012 APIA International, Sydney R16 2012 Brisbane International R32

2011 Shanghai Masters Quarter Finalist Aptos CA Challenger Quarter Finalist

Campbell's Hall of Fame Tennis

Quarter Finalist Championships

Australian Ranking: 14 **Current ATP Ranking:** 377

2011 SNAP State Grasscourts Championships Champion

2011Goldfields St Ives Tennis

International Champion Champion 2011 WA Super AMT 2011Turkey F23 Futures, Instanbul **Finalist** 2011 Cliffs Esperance International Semi Finalist 2012 Australia F4 Futures, Bundaberg Quarter Finalist 2012 Australia F1 Futures, Toowoomba **Quarter Finalist** 2012 Caloundra Challenger **Quarter Finalist** 2011 Australia F7 Futures, Darwin Quarter Finalist 2011 Turkey F20 Futures, Izmir **Quarter Finalist**

Quarter Finalist

Doubles

2011 SNAP State Grasscourt

2011 Germany F8 Futures

Championships Winner

Australian Ranking: 16 WTA Ranking: 608

Singles

2011 Darwin Tennis International Semi Finalist 2011 GDF Suez Female Open Semi Finalist 2011 Bundaberg Tennis International Semi Finalist 2011 Versmold ITF Quarter Finalist **BOJANA BOBUSIC**

Australian Ranking: Current WTA Ranking 230

2011 City of Mount Gambier Blue

Lake International Champion

2011 Nystar Port Pirie Tennis International

Finalist 2011 STC Winter AMT Finalist 2011 Aegon GB Pro Series Finalist 2011 Hilton Head Island ITF Finalist

2011 Koser Jewellers Pro circuit

Tennis Challenge Finalist 2012 McDonalds Burnie Women's

International

2011 Goldfields St Ives Tennis International

Semi Finalist 2011 Darwin Tennis International Semi Finalist 2011 Sumter ITF Semi Finalist

Semi Finalist

2012 Australian Open, January 2012 R128

Doubles

2011 Sumter ITF Champion 2011 WA Super AMT Finalist

STORM SANDERS

Australian Ranking: Current WTA Ranking 629 **Current Junior Ranking:** 101

Singles

2012 Mitsubishi-Lancer International Junior Championships Champion 2011 STC Winter AMT Champion

2011 Optus 18s Australian Championships Melbourne Finalist 2011 WA Super AMT Twilight Semi Finalist

2012 ITF Malaysian World Junior Tennis

Championships Quarter Finalist 2011 Alice Springs Tennis International Quarter Finalist

2012 18/U Australian Open Junior

Championships 2012 R16

Doubles

2011 STC Winter AMT Finalist

2011 Optus 18s Australian Championships, Melbourne 2011 WA Super AMT Twilight,

September Quarter Finalist

TEIWA CASEY

Australian Ranking: 65

<u>Singles</u>

2011 SNAP State Grasscourt

Championship

2011 Metropolitian Hardcourt Open

Championships

2011 STC Winter AMT, August 2011

2011 Optus 16s Australian

Championships, Melbourne R16

Doubles

2011 STC Winter AMT Finalist

2011 SNAP State Grasscourt

Championship 2011 Metropolitan Hardcourt

Championships

Quarter Finalist

Semi Finalist

Finalist

Semi Finalist

Semi Finalist

Quarter Finalist

Significant Achievements



Australian Ranking:

Singles

134

Quarter Finalist

2012 Nollamara Grasscourt

Championships Quarter Finalist 2012 Midland Open Quarter Finalist

2011 SNAP State Grasscourt Championships

2011Optus 16s Australian

Championships, Melbourne Cons. Finalist:

2012 Midland Open AMT Finalist

2011SNAP State Grasscourt

Championships Finalist 2011 STC Winter AMT Semi Finalist

2012 Optus 14s National Grasscourt

Quarter Finalist Championships

SCOTT JONES

Australian Ranking: 307

2012 South of the River Tournament Champion

2012 Optus 14s National Claycourt

Championships Finalist

2012 Midland Open AMT Semi Finalist 2012 Busselton Junior Open Semi Finalist 2011 Winter Junior Hardcourts Semi Finalist

2012 Nollamara Grasscourt

Quarter Finalist Championships

2011 City of Joondalup Junior Hardcourt Quarter Finalist

2012 Optus 14s Nationals, Mildura Champion 2012 Midland Open AMT Champion 2012 Busselton Junior Open Champion 2011 WA Junior Open Champion 2011 WA State Open Age Champion 2011 STC Winter AMT Finalist

2012 Optus 14s National Claycourts,

Ipswich Semi Finalist

2011 City of Joondalup Junior

Semi Finalist Hardcourts 2011 Winter Junior Hardcourts Semi Finalist

Australian Ranking: 248

2011 WA Junior Open Champion 2011 City of Joondalup Junior Hardcourt Champion 2011 Winter Junior Hardcourts Champion 2012 Nollamara Grasscourt AMT Finalist 2011 WA State open Age Finalist 2012 14s Nationals, Mildura Semi Finalist 2012 14s Nationals, Ipswich Quarter Finalist 2012 Midland AMT Quarter Finalist

2012 Optus 14s Nationals, Mildura Champion 2011 WA Junior Open, October 2011 Finalist 2012 14s Nationals, Ipswich, April Semi Finalist 2011 City of Joondalup Junior Hardcourt Semi Finalist Astra Sharma

Australian Ranking: 38

2011 STC Winter AMT Semi Finalist

2011 Metropolitan Hardcourt Open

Championships R16

Doubles

2011 STC Winter AMT Champion

2011 Optus 18s Australian Championships, Melbourne Quarter Finalist

2011 Metropolitan Hardcourt Open

Championships Quarter Finalist

RHYS JOHNSON

Australian Ranking:

Singles

2012 Nollamara Grasscourt

Championships Champion 2011 STC Winter AMT Champion

2011 SNAP State Grasscourt

Championships Finalist

2012 NSW Platinum AMT Quarter Finalist Quarter Finalist 2012 Gosford AMT

2011 Optus 18s Australian

Championships, Melbourne Quarter Finalist:

2012 Ipswich Futures 2012 Bundaberg Futures R16

Doubles

2012 Nollamara Grasscourt

Championships

2011 Optus 18s Australian

Championships, Melbourne Champion 2011 STC Winter AMT Champion 2012 Gosford AMT, Sydney Quarter Finalist

Caitlin Cridland

Australian Ranking: 134

2012 Nollamara Grasscourt AMT 2012 Glen Iris Open Championships

2011SNAP State Grasscourt

Championships Semi Finalist 2011 STC Winter AMT Semi Finalist

2012 Tennis World AMT Platinum R16

2012 Tennis Victoria Summer AMT Gold R16

2012 Nollamara Grasscourt AMT, March Champion 2011STC Winter AMT, August Champion

2011SNAP State Grasscourt

Champion

Championship

2012 Glen Iris Open Championships

Semi Finalist

Champion

Finalist

Semi Finalist

Significant Achievements



MADDISON INGLIS

Australian Ranking: 168

2012 Midland Open Champion 2011 City of Joondalup Junior Hardcourt Champion

2012 Optus 14s Grasscourt Nationals,

Quarter Finalist

2011 SNAP State Grasscourt

Championships Quarter Finalist 2011 STC Winter AMT **Quarter Finalist** 2011 Minelect WA State Hardcourt Quarter Finalist

2011 City of Joondalup Junior Hardcourt Champion 2011 Optus 14s Spring Nationals Champion 2012 Midland Open AMT Finalist

2012 Optus 16s Claycourt Nationals,

Semi Finalist

2012 Optus 14s National Grasscourts,

Mildura Semi Finalist:

2011SNAP State Grasscourt

Championships Semi Finalist

Australian Ranking:

2011 Rod Laver QLD Junior Championships Champion 2011 WA State Open Age Champion 2011 Winter Junior Hardcourts Champion 2012 Nollamara Grasscourt AMT Semi Finalist 2012 Midland Open Semi Finalist

Doubles

2011 Rod Laver Lead in Gold, Brisbane Champion 2012 Midland Junior Open Finalist

2011 Rod Laver QLD Junior

Championships Finalist 2011 Greenwood Junior Open Finalist 2011 Winter Junior Hardcourts Semi Finalist 2012 Optus 14s Nationals, Ipswich Quarter Finalist

DYLAN McCloskey

Australian Ranking: 154

Singles

2012 City of Salisbury AMT R16 2012Gosford AMT Silver #4 R16 2011 North Shore Open AMT Gold, NSW R32

Doubles

2011 Metropolitan Hardcourt Open

Championships Semi Finalist 2012 WTC City of Charles Sturt AMT **Quarter Finalist**

ASHWIN SHARMA

Australian Ranking: 215

2012 Esperance March Tournament AMT Champion 2011 STC Winter AMT Quarter Finalist

2011 Metropolitan Hardcourt Open

Championships Quarter Finalist **Doubles**

DOUBLES 2011 Esperance March Tournament

Champion 2012 Midland Open AMT Finalist

2011 STC Winter AMT Quarter Finalist

DOMINIC BECHARD

Australian Ranking: 460

16/U Esperance March Tournament,

Winner March 2012 16/U Midland Junior Open, January 2012 Finalist 2012 Esperance AMT, March 2012 Finalist

16/U Minelect WA State Hardcoruts,

Semi Finalist June 2011

16/U City of Joondalup Junior

Hardcourts, October 2011 Quarter Finalist

Doubles

16/U City of Joondalup Junior

Hardcourts, October 2011 Semi Finalist

Optus 14s National Grasscourt Championships, Mildura, February

Quarter Finalist

Australian Ranking: 545

Singles

2012 Busselton Junior Open Champion 2011 WA Junior Open Champion 2011 SNAP State Grasscourts Grasscourt Champion

2011 Rod Laver Lead in White OJT,

Finalist 2011 City of Joondalup Junior Hardcourt Finalist 2012 Midland Junior Open Semi Finalist

2012 Busselton Junior Open Champion

2011 City of Joondalup Junior

Hardcourt Champion 2012 Midland Junior Open Finalist 2011 WA Junior Open Finalist 2011 Greenwood Junior Open Finalist

2011 Rod Laver Lead in White OJT,

Brisbane Finalist



JULY - DECEMBER 2011

WA STATE OPEN AGE (STATE TENNIS CENTRE)

Gold Series OJT 233 Players

Boys Singles:

10/U Connor Enslin12/U Lachlan Casey14/U Corey Bavin16/U Ryan Godwin

Boys Doubles:

12/U Lachlan Casey / Mats Niklasson 14 /U Scott Jones / Luke Keddie 16/U Louis Asser / Linus Goh

Girls Singles

10/U Amy Dunhill 12/U Sara Stikic 14/U Sasha Bollweg 16/U Jelena Stojanovic

Girls Doubles:

12/U Chelsea Church / Jovana Glusac14/U Imogen Howes / Megan Kauffman

ITN Bands

Boys ITN 9-5+ Christian Harding Boys ITN 7.9 – 9 Benjamin Thomas Girls ITN 9.5+ Isaleyarna Bailey

GREENWOOD OPEN (GREENWOOD TENNIS CLUB)

White Series OJT 163 players

Boys Singles:

10/U Samuel DeAndrade 12/U Sudock Hong 14 /U Corey Bavin 16/U Jack Murray

Boys Doubles:

12/U Simon Ferreira / Tristan Schoolkate
14 /U Rafe Bonini / Connor McAlpine
16/U Alex Jones / James Mitchell

Girls Singles

10/U Amy Dunhill12/U Chelsea Church14/U Charleen Tiwari16/U Tyler Shepard

Girls Doubles:

12/U Winners Chelsea Church / Jovana Glusac

14/U Amelia Jones / Charleen Tiwari

WINTER JUNIOR HARDCOURT (STATE TENNIS CENTRE)

White Series OJT 200 players

Boys Singles:

10/U Incomplete
12/U Mats Niklasson
14/U Corey Bavin
16/U Jack Lyttle

Boys Doubles:

12/U Incomplete 14/U Incomplete Boys Doubles (cont):

16/U Incomplete

Girls Singles

10/U Rachel Mellor
12/U Olivia Rimmer
14/U Sasha Bollweg
16/U Aura Becerra-Cerinza

Girls Doubles:

12/U Incomplete14/U Incomplete

WA OPEN SUPER AMT (STATE TENNIS CENTRE)

Platinum AMT 106 players

Men's Singles

Championship Brydan Klein Consolation David Singles

Men's Doubles

Championship Scott Puodziunas / Gavin Van Peperzeel

Women's Singles

Championship Monique Adamczak Consolation Kayleigh Nicholas

Women's Doubles

Championship Monique Adamczak / Sandra Zaniewska

WA Spring Junior Hardcourts (State Tennis Centre)

White Series OJT 197 players

Boys Singles

10/U William Hann
12/U Lachlan Cavsey
14/U Tyler Tranqille
16/U James Mitchell
18/U Callum Henderson

Boys Doubles

12/U Trent Potter / Colten Way 14/U Rafe Bonini / Pierre Enjolras 16/U Jack Dowland / Luke Keddie

Girls Singles

10/U Jessie Voitkevich 12/U Madelaine Muller-Hughes

14/U Amelia Jones

18/U Aura Becerra-CerinzaMore

Girls Doubles

12/U Tsige Lacey / Madelaine Muller-Hughes

14/U Amelia Jones / Annabelle Lim



WA JUNIOR OPEN (STATE TENNIS CENTRE)

Gold Series OJT 250 players

Boys Singles

10/U Benjamin Dachs 12/U Daniel Groundwater 14/U Scott Jones

16/U Jack Lyttle 18/U Louis Asser

Boys Doubles

12/U Rigby Dowland / Ben Webster 14/U Scott Jones / Luke Keddie 16/U Ryan Godwin / Linus Goh 18/U Louis Asser / Daniel Ibbitson

Girls Singles

10/U Georgia Tovich
12/U Erika Bollweg
14/U Megan Kauffman
16/U Aura Becerra-Cerinza

Girls Doubles

12/U Madelaine Muller / Hughes & Olivia Rimmer

14/U Imogen Howes / Megan Kauffman

CITY OF JOONDALUP JUNIOR HARDCOURTS (SORRENTO

TC)

Silver Series OJT 186 players

Boys Singles

10/U Jarrod Capararo 12/U Ben Webster 14/U Tyler Tranquille 16/U Jack Lyttle

Boys Doubles

10/U Jarrod Capararo / Ethan Foo
12/U Luca Bonini / Tristan Schoolkate
14/U Rafe Bonini / Pierre Enjolras
16/U Ryan Godwin / Linus Goh

Girls Singles

10/U Julia Wang12/U Olivia Rimmer14/U Maddison Inglis16/U Tara Dunhill

Girls Doubles

12/U Erika Bollweg / Yazlyn Way14/U Maddison Inglis / Megan Kauffman

JUNIOR GRASS COURT CHAMPIONSHIPS (ROBERTSON PARK

Silver Series OJT 240 players

Boys Singles

10/U Benjamin Dachs
12/U Corey Robinson
12/U Consolation Ollie Henderson
14/U Scott Jones
14/U Consolation Tyler Tranquille
16/U James Mitchell
16/U Consolation Daniel Tait

Boys Doubles

10/U Oscar / Reuben Giorgio

12/U Simon Ferreira / Tristan Schoolkate14/U Scott Jones / Connor Mcalpine

Boys Doubles (cont)

16/U Jack Dowland / Luke Keddie

Girls Singles

10/U Ffion Buzza
12/U Mirante Ryder
12/U Consolation Chesca Hanlin
14/U Megan Kauffman
14/U Consolation Giorgie Jones
16/U Sarah Campion
16/U Consolation Tyler Sheppard

Girls Doubles

10/U Ffion Buzza / Madison Penny 12/U Mirante Ryder / Rhiannon Ryder 14/U Megan Kauffman / Charleen Tiwari

EAST FREMANTLE JUNIOR TENNIS CLASSIC (EAST

FREMANTLE TC)
White Series OJT 224 players

Boys Singles

10/U Reuben Giorgio
10/U Consolation Sebastian Dobbs
12/U AR Tristan Schoolkate
12/U AR Consolation Benjamin Camer-Pesci
12/U JDS Harry Bennie
12/U JDS Consolation Caiden Guidi
14/U AR Luke Keddie

14/U AR Luke Keddie
14/U AR Consolation
14/U JDS Josh Bennie
14/U JDS Consolation Ryan Hart
16/U AR Jack Dowland
16/U AR Consolation Jonathan Pinardi

Boys Doubles

10/U Oscar / Reuben Giorgio
12/U Luca Bonini / Christian Harding
14/U Ben Bannan / Alex Downey

16/U Adrian Marsegaglia / Connor Mcalpine

Girls Singles

10/U Shaye Gwynne 10/U Consolation Daniella Marchetti 12/U AR Wynonah Conway 12/U AR Consolation Julai Rakocevic 12/U JDS Sienna Zugaro 12/U JDS Consolation Salome Legris 14/U AR Charleen Tiwari 14/U AR Consolation Mervegul Nuhana 16/U AR Tara Dunhill

Girls Doubles

10/U Stephanie Hemsley / Samantha Yeats 12/U Tallulah Farrow / Julia Rakocevic 14/U Askin Arslan / Gurkawal Kaur- Bajaj

SNAP STATE GRASSCOURT CHAMPIONSHIPS (MT LAWLEY TC)

White Series AMT, Bronze OJT 296 players

Boys Singles

10/U Rueben Giorgio 12/U Rigby Dowland 12/U Consolation Daniel Downey 14/U Pierre Enjolras 14/U Consolation Alex Downey Jack Dowland 16/U 16/U Consolation Rafe Bonini 18/U Bjarke Boisen



SNAP State Grasscourt Championships (Mt Lawley TC) (cont)

Boys Doubles

12/U Rigby Dowland / Corey Robinson14/U Connor Mcalpine / Tyler Tranquille

16/U Corey Bavin

Girls Singles

10/U Lauren Nikoloski
12/U Erika Bollweg
12/U Consolation Monique Barry
14/U Sara Stikic
14/U Consolation Meg Connell
16/U Emeleen Wilson
18/U Caitlin Cridland

Girls Doubles

12/U Wynonah Conway / Nadia Rajan

14/U Amelia / Giorgie Jones

Men's Singles

Championship Brydan Klein
Consolation David Bignall
Special Sam Birrell

Men's Doubles

Championship Brydan Klein / Brett Patten

Women's Singles

Championship Marisa Gianotti Consolation Amelia Jones

Women's Doubles

Championship Caitlin Cridland / Kay-Leigh Nicholas

Mixed Doubles

Championship Charles Williams / Katy O'Shea

JANUARY - JULY 2012

SUNSMART APPLECROSS JUNIOR TOURNAMENT (APPLECROSS TC)

White Series AR Event 110 players

Boys Singles

10/U Maxim Govaderica
12/U Christian Harding
12/U Consolation
14/U Pierre Enjolras
14/U Consolation
16/U Rafe Bonini
16/U Consolation Matthew Hadfield

Boys Doubles

10/U Sebastian Dobbs / George Plant
12/U Christian Harding / Luca Bonini
14/U Alex Downey / Sudock Hong

Girls Singles

10/U Ohomairangi Skinner 12/U Wynonah Conway 12/U Consolation Crystal Mildwaters 14/U Elana Dillon 14/U Consolation Mervegul Nuhana Girls Doubles

10/U Shaye Gwynne / Kelsey Wolmarins
12/U Monique Barry / Tatum Wolmarans
14/U Natalija Pavlovic / Lily West

North Beach Junior Classic (North Beach TC)

Gold Series OJT 158 players

Boys Singles

10/U Brodie Schoolkate
12/U Jack Hardy
12/U Consolation Trent Potter
14/U Consolation Dino Bisignano
16/U Jack Lyttle
16/U Consolation Matt Friend

Boys Doubles

12/U Lachlan Casey / Rigby Dowland 14/U Pierre Enjolras / Tyler Tranquille 16/U Luke Keddie / Jack Dowland

Girls Singles

10/U Lauren Nikoloski 12/U Olivia Rimmer 12/U Consolation Nadia Rajan 14/U Consolation Sian Vinicombe 16/U Crista Santiago

Girls Doubles

12/U Jovana Glusac / Olivia Rimmer 14/U Giorgie Jones / Kurkawal Kaur-Bajaj

NORTH OF THE RIVER (NORTH BEACH TC)

White Series OJT 104 players (New Event)

Boys Singles

10/U William Hann
10/U Consolation Oscar Giorgio
12/U Tristan Schoolkate
12/U Consolation Thomas Pavlekovich-Smith
14/U Alex Downey

14/U Consolation
 16/U
 16/U Consolation
 Alexander Bechard
 Jack Dowland
 Adrian Spencer

Boys Doubles

12/U Samuel Hadfield / Braden Penny
14/U Nicholas D'Ignazio / Alex Downey
16/U Jack Dowland / Rigby Dowland

Girls Singles

10/U Lauren Nikoloski 12/U Monique Barry 12/U Consolation Lexie Weir 14/U Nina Sergeev 16/U Meg Connell

Mixed Singles

Orange Ball Jeffrey Zhou

Mixed Doubles

Orange Ball Callum Wong / Arden Ongley



South of The River (South Perth TC)

White Series OJT 88 players (New Event)

Boys Singles

10/U Connor Mincherton 12/U Trent Potter 12/U Consolation Nikola Losic 14/U Jackson Basrber

14/U Consolation Connor Golden Scott Jones

Boys Doubles

12/U Tristan Galati / Trent Potter
14/U Dino Bisignano / Dylan Wood
16/U Pierre Enjolras / Scott Jones

Girls Singles

10/U Tara Gilich
12/U Julia Rakocevic
12/U Consolation Ellyse Wilson
14/U Mervegul Nuhana
14/U Consolation Georgia Hemsley

Boys Doubles

10/U Connor Mincherton / Tully Slattery

Girls Doubles

10/U Stephanie Hemsley / Samantha Yeats12/U Wynonah Conway & Nadia Rajan

CBH GROUP COUNTRY WEEK CARNIVAL (ALEXANDER PARK TC)

White Series AMT & OJT 123 Players

Men's Events

Championship Paul Starkie
Consolation Joshua Bowen
Open B Grade Scott Stirrat
Open Team Bunbury

Open A Grade Team O/45 Team Geraldton / Tarcoola Busselton/ Bunbury

Women's Events

Championship Jennifer Krummenacher

Open Team Geraldton

Doubles Team Geraldton / Spalding Ladies O/45 Team Mandurah Red

Boys Singles

12/U Mitchell Fraser 12/U Consolation Owen Kirkham Geraldton Blue 12/U Team 14/U Dylan Watson 14/U Consolation Paul Sutherland 16/U Jack Campbell Liam Campbell 16/U Consolation Junior Team Geraldton Red

Girls Singles

12/U Madeline Muller-Hughes 12/U Consolation Rhiannon Ryder

12/U Team Geraldton
14/U Mirrante Ryder

14/U Consolation Brooke Clynch (withdrawal)

16/U Ali Scott
Junior Team Geraldton Blue

Busselton Junior Open (Busselton TC)

Bronze Series OJT 152 players

Boys Singles

10/U Brodie Schoolkate
12/U Rigby Dowland
12/U Consolation Thomas Hann
14/U Michael Offerman
14/U Consolation Connor Golden
16/U Jack Dowland
16/U Consolation Ryan Mabee

Boys Doubles

10/U Oscar Giorgio / Reuben Giorgio
12/U Rigby Dowland / Corey Robinson
14/U Alex Downey / Mats Niklasson
16/U Jack Dowland / Scott Jones

Girls Singles

10/U Georgia Tovich
12/U Erika Bollweg
12/U Consolation Jessie Voitkevich
14/U Sara Stikic
14/U Consolation Natalija Pavlovic

16/U Brooke Campbell
16/U Consolation Madelaine Miller

Girls Doubles

10/U Georgia / Lara Tovich 12/U Erika Bollweg / Tsige Lacey 14/U Olivia Rimmer / Sara Stikic

16/U Brooke Campbell / Madelaine Miller

GUNDRY'S CARPET CHOICE MIDLAND OPEN (MIDLAND TC)

Bronze Series AMT & OJT 182 players

Men's Singles

Open Cameron Fenner Consolation James Mitchell

Men's Doubles

Open Cameron Fenner / Scott Jones

Women's Singles

Open Maddison Inglis

Women's Doubles

Open Megan Kauffman / Imogen Howes

Boys Singles

12/U Rigby Dowland 12/U Consolation Lewis May 14/U Alex Downey Blake Di Virgilio 14/U Consolation James Mitchell 16/U Matthew Hadfield 16/U Consolation 18/U Louis Asser 18/U Consolation Rigby Dowland

Boys Doubles

12/U Rigby Dowland / Jack Hardy
14/U Pierre Enjolras / Tyler Tranquille
16/U Jake Faundez / James Mitchell

Girls Singles

10/U Lauren Nikoloski
12/U Monique Barry
12/U Consolation Lexie Weir
14/U Gonsolation Gurkawal Kaur-Bajaj
16/U Alexander Dique



GUNDRY'S CARPET CHOICE MIDLAND OPEN (MIDLAND TC) (CONT.)

Girls Doubles

12/U Lexie Weir & Tsige Lacey 14/U Chelsea Church & Sara Stikic

Busselton Open (Busselton TC)

Open & Seniors Event 291 players

Men's Singles

Championship Greg McAlpine Handicap Glenn Thompson

Men's Doubles

Championship Daret Gooch / Roger Grant
Handicap Justin Maguire / Glenn Thompson
Senior Maurice Behn / Colin Marshall

Ladies Singles

Championship Brenda Plint Handicap Sue Thomas

Ladies Doubles

Championship
Handicap
Senior

Alicia Lee / Brenda Plint
Lucy Cregan / Mary Lindsay
Laura Gilmartin / Julie Wright

Mixed Doubles

ChampionshipAneil Achari / Brenda PlintHandicapSimon Lingford / Kerene MelvinSeniorsGarry Fraser / Jenny Irvine

2012 ESPERANCE MARCH OPEN (ESPERANCE TC)

White Series AMT & OJT 125 players

Men's Singles

Championship
Consolation
Div. 2
Div. 2 Consolation

Championship
Bernard Richter
lain Clark
Jake Sheean

Men's Doubles

Championship Scott Culpin / Ashwin Sharma Div. 2 Nick Gray / Timothy Gray

Div. 2 Consolation Abandoned

Women's Singles

Championship
Div. 2
Div. 2 Consolation

Event Didn't Run
Sally Partington
Sue Hawkey

Women's Doubles

Championship
Div. 2
Linda Campbell / Anne Welke
Sheryl Forbes / Diane Foster
Over 45
Linda Campbell / Elizabeth Lanagan

Mixed Doubles

Championship Nigel Thomas / Dale Rooney
Over 45 David Greatrex / Elizabeth Lanagan

Boys Singles

10/U Brodie Schoolkate
12/U Thomas Golden
12/U Consolation Jacob Peletier
14/U Mats Niklasson
14/U Consolation Timothy Gray
16/U Dominic Bechard
16/U Consolation Kyle Hayes

Boys Doubles

12/U Sam Ashby / Jarrod Capararo 14/U Timothy Gray / Nic D'Ignazio 16/U Dan Burke / Declan Mountford

Girls Singles

10/U Jaime Edwards12/U No Event

12/U Consolation No Event
14/U Sally Partington
14/U Consolation Nyasha Bepete

Girls Doubles

12/U No Event

14/U Yazlyn Way / Wynonah Conway

2011 Nollamara Grass Court Open (Nollamara TC)

White Series AMT & OJT 178 players

Men's Singles

Open Rhys Johnson Consolation Tyler Tranquille

Men's Doubles

Open John Campbell / Rhys Johnson

Women's Singles

Open Kay -Leigh Nicholas

Women's Doubles

Open Caitlin Cridland / Amelia Jones

Boys Singles

Nicholas Mitchell 10/U 10/U Consolation Ethan Foo Simon Ferreira 12/U 12/U Consolation Ben Seymour 14/11 Jack Hardy 14/U Consolation Milan Durmic 16/U James Mitchell 16/U Consolation Tyler Hind 18/U Scott Webster

Boys Doubles

12/U Sam Alexander / Kyle Potter 14/U Dino Bisignano / Trent Potter

Girls Singles

Lauren Nikoloski 10/U 10/U Consolation Natasha Camer-Pesci 12/U Monique Barry 12/U Consolation **Tatum Wolmarums** 14/U Amelia Jones 14/U Consolation Isalevarna Bailev 16/U **Brooke Campbell** 16/U Consolation Isaleyarna Bailey

Girls Doubles

12/U Monique Barry / Tatum Wolmarums



MITCHELL & BROWN GERALDTON EASTER OPEN (Geraldton TC)

Silver Series AMT, JDS & Seniors 263 players

Men's Singles

Brett Patten Championship Consolation Kyle Mackin Antonino Rechichi Div. 1

Men's Doubles

Championship Sam Ashenden / Joel Pleydell Mark Baker / Joel Pleydell Div. 1 Glenn Beard / Danny Bowen Combined Age 80-100 Combined Age 120+ Vaun Gould / Ken Harris

Women's Singles

Caitlin Cridland Championship Consolation Alison Lane

Div. 1 Stephanie Macdonald

Women's Doubles

Caitlin Cridland / Charleen Tiwari Championship Emma Bowen / Jennifer Krummenacher Div. 1 Combined Age 80-100 Sharon Crudelli / Angie Stagg

Mixed Doubles

Katy O'Shea / Sam Ashenden Championship Combined Age 100+ Jenny Teakle / Ken Harris

Boys Singles

10/U Sebastian Dobbs 12/U Mathew DeGroot 14/U Div.1 Lachlan Napier 14/U Div.2 Ethan Cusack 16/U Blake Cheshire 18/U Ryan Godwin

Boys Doubles

12/U Alex Capill / Ben Linthorne 14/U Div.2 Caleb Antonovich / Ethan Cusack 14/16/U Alexander Bechard / Michael Hardman

Girls Singles

12/U Jessica Nairn 12/U Div 2 Olivia Watson Wynonah Conway 14/U 16/U Charleen Tiwari

Girls Doubles

Olivia Dangerfield / Elise Dobbs 12/14/U 14/16/U Danika Humphries / Rachelle Maestre

BRIDGETOWN EASTER OPEN (BRIDGETOWN TC

JDS Open & Seniors 319 players

Men's Singles

Championship Paul Starkie Div. 2 Henry Willis Thomas Vellios Div. 2 Consolation

Men's Doubles

Championship Lee Auguston / Chris Guenoff Div 2. Peter Dyson / Phil Holten Div 3. William Emery / Les Bairstow Div. 4 Brad Potter / Trent Potter Over 45 Div. 1 Peter Dyson / Phil Holten

Paul Logothatis / Geoff Rule

Women's Singles

Over 45 Div. 2

Veronica Burns Championship Div.2 Brooke Campbell Women's Doubles

Championship Sharon Massey / Vicki Potter Claire Lorrimar / Katie Scarterfield Div 2. Over 40 Div. 1 Sharon Massey / Shaan Saunders Over 40 Div. 2 Natalie Clynch / Linda Fullam

Mixed Doubles Championship

Tom Kozak / Judy Kozak Jack Campbell / Brooke Campbell Div 2. Div. 3 Gavin Maclellan / Lesley Maclellan Div. 4 Kon Kozak / Megan Kozak Gary Fraser / Jenny Irvine Vets Div. 1 Vets Div. 2 Wayne Cutler / Lisa Brannan Vets Div. 3 Geogg Rule / Sharyn Rule

Boys Singles

Kyle Potter 15/U 15/U Consolation Trent Potter 18/U Adrian Marsegaglia

Boys Doubles

12/U Mason Grosse / Kyle Potter

Girls Singles

15/U Josephine Kneebone 15/U Consolation Lauren Periera 18/U Tess Inglis

Girls Doubles

12/U Kellie Bairstow / Rhiannon Capararo

Mixed Doubles

Calin Zoehrer / Philip Singh 15/U

BRIXTON STREET JUNIOR OPEN (BRIXTON STREET TC)

Silver Series OJT 141 players

Boys Singles

10/U Nicholas Mitchell 12/U Sudock Hon 12/U Consolation Milan Durmic 14/U Todd Aleksic 14/U Consolation Jake Bell Luke Keddie 16/U 16/U Consolation Tyler Hind

Boys Doubles

10/U Jesse Chambers / Tully Slattery Luca Bonini / Christian Harding 12/U Jack Hardy / Mats Niklasson 14/U Luke Keddie / James Mitchell 16/U

Girls Singles

10/U Tara Gilich 12/U Jovan Glusac 12/U Consolation Jessie Voitkevich 14/U Chelsea Church 14/U Consolation Tallulah Grauaug Annabelle Lim 16/U Sian Vinicombe 16/U Consolation

Girls Doubles

10/U Kate Gibson / Tara Gilich

Tsige Lacey / Madelaine Muller-Hughes 12/U Chelsea Church / Olivia Rimmer 14/U Annabelle Lim / Sian Vinicombe 16/U

Page 44



NEDLANDS JUNIOR OPEN (NEDLANDS TC)

White Series OJT 171 players

Boys Singles

10/U Declan Mearns 10/U Consolation Oscar Giorgio 12/U Rigby Dowland 12/U Consolation Christian Harding 14/U Connor Mcalpine 14/U Consolation Matt Wang 16/U Dominic Bechard 16/U Consolation Adrian Spencer

Boys Doubles

12/U Lachlan Casey / Rigby Dowland 14/U Ben Bannan / Rei Masuda

Girls Singles

10/U Chesca Hanlin
12/U Chelsea Church
12/U Consolation Chesca Hanlin
14/U Tara Dunhill
14/U Consolation Awhina Carpenter

Girls Doubles

12/U Chelsea Church / Olivia Rimmer 14/U Daisy Coffey / Tara Dunhill

PEEL OPEN JUNIOR NOVICE EVENT

Event Cancelled

CBH GROUP COUNTRY ZONE CHALLENGE (TEAMS)

A Grade

12/U Mid West14/U South West

16/U South West Open Mid West

B Grade

12/U South West 14/U South West Open South West Overall Winner South West

BENDIGO BANK SOUTH MANDURAH 24TH JUNIOR OPEN

Boys Singles

11/U Sebastian Dobbs 12/U Owen Kirkham 14/U Justin Sellars 17/U Kayne Vaque

Boys Doubles

13/U Jacob Damstra / Victor Van De Graaf

17/U Elliot Lyons / Kayne Vague

Girls Singles

11/U Skye Royall 14/U Rachel Mellor

16/U Madeline Muller-Hughes

Girls Doubles

13/U Madeline Muller Hughes / Elana Dillon15/U Danika Humphries & Alexandra Jovicic

Mixed Doubles

13/U Victor Van De Graaf / Katrina Davis 17/U Kayne Vague / Elana Dillon

GOLDSTYLE HOMES JUNIOR TOURNAMENT (HENSMAN

Silver Series OJT 230 players

Boys Singles

10/U Nicholas Mitchell 10/U Consolation Matthew Springer Zachary Scott-Jones 10/U Classic 12/U Rigby Dowland 12/U Consolation Luca Bonini Tyler Tranquille 14/U 14/U Consolation Ben Webster 16/U Dominic Bechard 16/U Consolation Rafe Bonini

Boys Doubles

10/U Oscar Giorgio / Reuben Giorgio 12/U Rigby Dowland / Tristan Schoolkate 14/U Jack Hardy / Tyler Tranquille 16/U Josh Bowen / Matthew Taylor

Girls Singles

10/U Kate Gibson
12/U Jovana Glusac
12/U Consolation
14/U Consolation
16/U Consolation
16/U Consolation
16/U Consolation
16/U Consolation
16/U Tara Dunhill

Girls Doubles

10/U Anya Rajan / Chelsea Vellios 14/U Olivia Rimmer / Sara Stikic 16/U Megan Kauffman / Charleen Tiwari

AUTUMN TWILIGHT AMT (STATE TENNIS CENTRE)

Silver Series AMT 71 players

Men's Singles

Championship Rhys Johnson
Consolation Dominic Bechard

Men's Doubles

Championship Robert Allan / Daniel Alameh

Women's Singles

Championship Marisa Gianotti Consolation Meg Connell

Women's Doubles

Championship Maddison Inglis / Kristy Jones



MINELECT WA STATE HARDCOURTS (GOLDFIELDS TC)

Bronze Series AMT & OJT 150 players

Boys Singles

10/U Jarrod Capararo
12/U Christian Harding
12/U Consolation Kevin Banwell
14/U Tyler Tranquille
14/U Consolation Connor Golden
16/U James Mitchell
16/U Consolation Matthew Haynes

Boys Doubles

10/U Jarrod Capararo / Sebastian Dobbs
 12/U Tristan Schoolkate / Ollie Henderson
 14/U Jack Hardy / Tyler Tranquille

Girls Singles

10/U Daniella Marchetti
12/U Crystal Mildwaters
12/U Consolation Lexie Weir
14/U Consolation Isaleyarna Bailey
16/U Tara Dunhill

16/U Consolation

Girls Doubles
10/U Anja Rajan / Kelsey Wolmarans
12/U Monique Barry / Lexie Weir

Danika Humphies

Mixed Doubles

12/U Benjamin Dachs / Nadia Rajan 16/U Mark Collins / Niamh Delaney

Men's Singles

AMT Rhys Johnson
AMT Consolation Jack Dowland
Div.2 Andrew Dobbs
Div. 2 Consolation Mike Jones

Men's Doubles

AMT John Campbell / Rhys Johnson

Women's Singles

AMT Maddison Inglis
Open Consolation Meg Connell

Men's Doubles

AMT Caitlin Cridland / Maddison Inglis Div.2 Sheryl Forbes / Diane Foster

Mixed Doubles

Open Scott Jones / Maddison Inglis Div.2 Tim Weir / Vanya Kelleher

Treasurer's Report



I hereby present the Tennis West Financial Summary Report for the 2011-12 financial year.

The 2011-2012 financial year saw Tennis West (TW) post a surplus, with a well-earned annual net surplus of \$96,230 against a forecast budget surplus of \$4,489. This result follows the recent trend of the previous two years and was pleasing in an uncertain economic environment with rising costs affecting both our members and the Association. Net assets shown on the Balance Sheet reflect our prudent approach growing from \$1,038,473 to \$1,134,703 over the year, and cash on hand was \$971,172 at June 30 2011, against \$802,179 at 30 June 2011.

The strong performance was driven by a number of factors. Tennis Australia and the Department of Sport and Recreation (DSR), remain the Associations' two largest benefactors. Grant income remained stable over the previous year with the Community Tennis department exceeded budgeted targets achieving 100 percent of Key Performance Indicators income as set by Tennis Australia.

Affiliation and related income (Tennis League fees and Tournament Sanction fees) largely tracked budgeted income. One positive indicator was an increase in junior competition unfortunately offset by a slight decrease in senior competition. Research indicates that participation levels remain high, although the manner in which people engage in our sport is changing. This trend was confirmed by a slight decrease in overall affiliation numbers.

State Tennis Centre (STC) functions income continues to provide a significant income stream, although not part of our core business. Functions are an important factor in providing for the Associations' surplus. This was mainly due to an increase in the marketing of the Centre and efficiencies in costs, abetted by salary savings.

Maintenance expenditure of the State Tennis Centre remains a major concern and a primary risk factor affecting the Association. Prospects of the State Governments redevelopment of the Burswood peninsula into a world leading sporting precinct would provide a much-needed

facelift to an aging Centre, enabling tennis to highlight and showcase some of our most important events and programs.

Tennis West remains grateful to its main funding partners – Tennis Australia, the Department of Sport and Recreation and Healthway who continue to give us the opportunity to service our clubs and members in growing tennis throughout Western Australia. In addition a number of our commercial sponsors, in particular Brikmakers continue to be a stable in supporting the biggest and best tennis league in Australia. League remains the envy of the other states. The D'Arcy Slater Foundation generously increased their sponsorship, giving young players in the country the opportunity to come together and compete in a well-established completion.

Once again Tennis West continues to employ a conservative investment approach with funds allocated to term deposits spread over a number of major banks and investment houses. With uncertainty surrounding the redevelopment of the State Tennis Centre, capital expenditure was limited to the bare necessity, surrounding mainly court and lighting repairs.

Increases in the cost of energy and an unbudgeted cost in legal and mediation expenses proved an additional drain on resources although fortunately offset by cost savings in salary across a range of departments.

Volunteers continue to be vital and an integral factor to the vibrancy of our sport particularly from a financial perspective. All volunteers across Western Australia and are to be commended for their tireless efforts, whether it be through promoting tennis, their contribution to the Hopman Cup, our Pro Circuit events or at a local council or club level.

In summary I would like to unreservedly thank the Tennis West staff and my board colleagues who have helped navigate a challenging year in a most professional manner. The Association remains stable financially, and poised to continue growing the game through judicious investment and a targeted approach.

Bill Price Treasurer, Tennis West



W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated ABN 90 803 634 736

30 June 2012



W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 30 June 2012

	Note	2012	2011
Player development revenue	6	165,866	121,912
Tennis competitions revenue	6	336,767	299,061
Tennis business revenue	6	358,337	329,860
Tennis clubs & community revenue	6	476,565	471,620
Marketing revenue	6	78,948	68,868
Total revenue		1,416,483	1,291,321
Otherincome	7	1,117,480	1,135,170
Player development expenses		(238,645)	(258,172)
Tennis competitions expenses		(372,418)	(324,445)
Tennis business expenses		(671,404)	(623,667)
Tennis clubs & community expenses		(461,224)	(445,485)
Marketing expenses		(74,149)	(84,558)
Finance & administration expenses		(667,902)	(607,023)
Total expenses		(2,485,742)	(2,343,350)
Finance income	9	48,009	50,774
Net finance income		48,009	50,774
Net surplus for the period		96,230	133,915
Other comprehensive income		1.00	
			*
Total comprehensive income for the period		96,230	133,915

The statement of comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the notes of the financial statements set out on pages 5 to 20



W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 30 June 2012

	100 Club	Player Development Fund	Asset Replacement Reserve	Retained earnings	Total equity
Balance at 1 July 2010	22,593	101,667	90,000	690,298	904,558
Total comprehensive income for the period	50	- 2		20	7.
Total other comprehensive income	12	_	-	2	2
Surplus for the period	-	-	-	133,915	133,915
Allocation of funds	2,551	9,381		(11,932)	*
Fundraising money allocated to 100 Qub	13,805	-	-	(13,805)	20
Payment of player grants	(17,800)	(15,700)	-	33,500	- 4
Balance at 30 June 2011	21,149	95,348	90,000	831,976	1,038,473
Balance at 1 July 2011	21,149	95,348	90,000	831,976	1,038,473
Total comprehensive income for the period					
Total other comprehensive income	-	*			
Surplus for the period	-	-	-	96,230	96,230
Allocation of funds	978	4,482	-	(5,460)	2
Fundraising money allocated to 100 Gub	9,109	-	-	(9,109)	
Payment of player grants	(12,255)	(11,400)	-	23,655	
Balance at 30 June 2012	18,981	88,430	90,000	937,292	1,134,703

The statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 5 to 20



W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Statement of financial position

As at 30 June 2012

	Note	2012	2011
Assets			
Cash and cash equivalents	11	971,172	802,179
Trade receivables and other assets	12	82,684	127,117
Inventories	13	11,340	10,421
Total current assets		1,065,196	939,717
Property, plant and equipment	14	4,469,106	4,560,128
Total non-current assets		4,469,106	4,560,128
Total assets	-	5,534,302	5,499,845
Liabilities			
Trade and other payables	15	174,788	159,525
Employee benefits	16	89,384	75,769
Income received in advance	17	178,575	152,715
Total current liabilities		442,747	388,009
Employee benefits	16	27,887	18,893
Income received in advance	17	3,928,965	4,054,470
Total non-current liabilities		3,956,852	4,073,363
Total liabilities	_	4,399,599	4,461,372
Net assets	1	1,134,703	1,038,473
Members' Equity			
Retained earnings		937,292	843,908
Reserves	· ·	197,411	194,565
Total members' equity	_	1,134,703	1,038,473

The statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 5 to 20



W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Statement of cash flows For the year ended 30 June 2012

	Note	2012	2011
Cash flows from operating activities			
Cash receipts from customers		2,228,248	1,891,848
Cash paid to suppliers and employees		(2,508,549)	(2,381,383)
Interest received		47,089	55,319
Cash receipts from government grants		484,758	565,877
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities	22	251,546	131,661
Cash flows from investing activities			
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment	14	(83,189)	(101,939)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment		636	- AND CONTROL OF
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities		(82,553)	(101,939)
Cash flows from financing activities			
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities			-
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents		168,993	29,722
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July		802,179	772,457
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June	11	971,172	802,179

The statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 5 to 20



W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Notes to the financial statements

1. Reporting entity

The W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated ('Association') is an Association domiciled in Australia. The Association is Incorporated under the Associations Incorporation Act 1987. The address of the Association's registered office is:

State Tennis Centre Victoria Park Drive Burswood WA 6100

The Association is a not-for- profit entity and the principal activities of the Association during the course of the financial year were the promotion and development of the game of tennis in Western Australia.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements were approved by the Members of the Committee (the "Board of Directors") on 29 August, 2012.

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards ('AASBs') adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Associations Incorporation Act 1987.

The standards relevant to the Association that have been adopted during the year are:

- AASB1054 Australian Additional Disclosures
- AASB 2009-12 Related Party Disclosures
- AASB 2010-4 Further Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial report has been prepared on the historical cost basis.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars, which is the Association's functional currency.

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements are described in the following note:

 Note 14 – property, plant and equipment (impairment assessment and determination of useful lives)



W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Notes to the financial statements

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements. Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation

(a) Financial instruments

(i) Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other payables.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition non-derivative financial instruments are measured as described below.

A financial instrument is recognised if the Association becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised if the Association's contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or if the Association transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Association's obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits.

(ii) Loans and receivables

Other non-derivative financial instruments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

(b) Property, plant and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost or deemed cost less accumulated depreciation (see below) and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment. Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

(ii) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Association and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment.

The estimated useful lives in the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Leasehold Improvements
 Plant and equipment
 Courts
 50 years
 3-10 years
 43-45 years

The residual value, the useful life and the depreciation method applied to an asset are reassessed at least annually.



W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Notes to the financial statements

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

(d) Impairment

(i) Financial assets (including receivables)

A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Individual significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, and this reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Association's non-financial assets, other than inventories, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

(e) Employee benefits

(i) Long-term employee benefits

The Association's net obligation in respect of long-term service benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The obligation is calculated using expected future increases in wage and salary rates including related on-costs and expected settlement dates, and is discounted using the rates attached to the Commonwealth Government bonds at the balance sheet date which have maturity dates approximating to the terms of the Association's obligations.

(ii) Short-term benefits

Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salaries and annual leave represent present obligations resulting from employees' services provided to reporting date and are calculated at undiscounted amounts based on wage and salary rates that the Association expects to pay as at reporting date including related on-costs, such as workers compensation insurance and payroll tax.



W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Notes to the financial statements

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Association has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(f) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Association has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

(g) Revenue and other income

(i) Goods sold

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing management involvement with the goods.

(iii) Services

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in the profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at reporting date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of work performed.

Revenue received in advance relating to the promotion of tennis at the State Tennis Centre has been deferred and is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period that the services are rendered.

(iii) Grant income

Reciprocal grants

Grants received on the condition that specified services should be delivered or conditions fulfilled are considered reciprocal. Such grants are initially recognised as a liability and revenue recognised as services are performed or conditions fulfilled.

Non-reciprocal grants

Where a grant is received where there is no performance obligation or return obligation, revenue is recognised when the grant is received or receivable.

(h) Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

(i) Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method.

Finance expenses comprise interest paid on borrowings

(j) Income tax

The Association's income relates to its activities as an Association established for the encouragement of sport. In following the Income Tax Assessment Act of 1997 Div 50 s.50-45, the Associations income is therefore considered exempt from income tax.

Withholding tax from other jurisdictions is provided when the liability is due and payable.



9

W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Notes to the financial statements

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Goods and services tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office are classified as operating cash flows.

(I) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 July 2012, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of these are expected to have a significant effect on the financials statements of the Association, except AASB 9 Financial Instruments, which becomes mandatory for the Association's 2014 financial statements and could change the classification and measurement of financial assets. The Association does not plan to adopt this standard early and the extent of the impact has not been determined.

4. Determination of fair values

A number of the Association's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. Where applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

(i) Trade and other receivables

For receivables with a remaining useful life of less than one year, the notional amount is deemed to reflect the fair value. All other receivables are discounted to determine the fair value.

5. Financial risk management

The Association has exposure to the following risks from their use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk
- Operational risk

This note presents information about the Association's exposure to each of the above risks, their objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout this financial report.

The Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework.

Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Association, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Association's activities. The Association, through their training and management standards and procedures, aim to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Credit risk

Oredit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Association if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Association's receivables from customers and investment securities.



10

W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Notes to the financial statements

5. Financial risk management (continued)

Trade and other receivables

The Association's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Association's customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country, in which customers operate, has less of an influence on credit risk. Approximately 24 percent (2011:21 percent) of the Association's revenue is attributable to transactions with a single customer.

The Association has established an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables and investments. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individual exposures. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of payment statistics for similar financial assets.

The majority of the Association's customers have been transacting with the Association for a number of years, and losses have been minimal.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Association will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Association's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Association's reputation.

Typically the Association ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a period of 60 days, including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Association's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Currency risk

The Association is not exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings as they only transact in their denominated currency the Australian dollar (AUD).



11

W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Notes to the financial statements

5. Financial risk management (continued)

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Association's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the Association's operations.

The Association's objective is to manage the operations risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to the Association's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior management within each business unit. This responsibility is supported by the development of overall Association's standards for the management of operational risk in the following areas:

- Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including independent authorisation
 of transactions:
- · Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;
- Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;
- Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to address the risks identified;
- Requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action
- Development of contingency plans
- · Training and professional development
- · Ethical and business standards; and
- · Risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

Capital management

The Association is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.



12

10,524

1,135,170

1,117,480

W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Notes to the financial statements

6. Revenue

2012	2011
57,150	56,499
27,613	17,300
81,103	48,113
165,866	121,912
	10,000
226,647	221,013
25,655	45,206
24,090	22,842
336,767	299,061
86,361	82,665
97,145	95,500
17,012	14,135
27,500	34,932
130,319	102,628
358,337	329,860
412,900	393,469
63,665	78,151
476,565	471,620
30,000	30,000
8,000	1,200
12,278	15,750
28,670	20,503
The second secon	1,415
78,948	68,868
1,416,483	1,291,321
2012	201
	387,484
	97,22
	51,22
	130,150
	509,788
	57,150 27,613 81,103 165,866 60,375 226,647 25,655 24,090 336,767 86,361 97,145 17,012 27,500 130,319 358,337 412,900 63,665 476,565 30,000 8,000 12,278 28,670

Government grants

Total other income

Sundry income

The Association has been awarded government grants from the WA Department of Sport and Recreation (DSR) and Healthway. The DSR grants cover the Associations business plan funding, a Pro Circuit community action programme, high performance funding and an indigenous program grant for a dedicated indigenous program.

The Healthway grant was provided to fund various programs mainly focused on participation and junior development programs.



W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Notes to the financial statements

8. Other expenses

The Association has the following key expenses:

	in a rice of all of the rene in ing ite j emperiore.		
		2012	2011
	Depreciation expense		
	leasehold improvements	106,025	105,752
	plant and equipment	39,386	37,061
	courts	28,164	25,480
	Cost of goods sold		
	cost of inventories	120,682	108,918
	Movement in provision for employee benefits	22,609	5,235
	Insurance expense	57,212	65,699
	Operating lease rental expense	200	200
9.	Finance income and expense		
		2012	2011
	Interest income on bank deposits	48,009	50,774
	Finance income	48,009	50,774
	Finance expense	10 (1 <u>4</u>)	
	Net finance income and expense	48,009	50,774

No finance income and expenses are recognised through equity. This is consistent with the statement of changes in equity on page $2\,$

10. Auditor's remuneration

	2012	2011
Audit services		
Auditors of the Association		
KPMG Australia:		
Audit and review of financial reports	11,550	11,000
	11,550	11,000
Other services		
Auditors of the Association		
KPMG Australia:	-	12,500
	·	12,500

13



14

W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Notes to the financial statements

11. Cash and cash equivalents

	2012	2011
Bank balances	232,923	426,992
Cash on hand	3,400	700
Deposits at call	734,849	374,487
Cash and cash equivalents	971,172	802,179

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. The call deposits are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are held at amortised cost.

12.	Trade and other receivables		
		2012	2011
	Trade receivables	15,170	48,268
	Other receivables	36,727	34,761
	Prepayments	30,787	44,088
		82,684	127,117
13.	Inventories		
		2012	2011
	Inventory on hand	11,340	10,421
		11,340	10,421



W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Notes to the financial statements
14. Property, plant and equipment

	Leasehold	Plantand		
	Improvements	equipment	Courts	Total
Cost				
Balance at 1 July 2010	5,151,788	358,309	1,147,724	6,657,821
Additions	•	101,939	1	101,939
Disp osals		1	3	2
Balance at 30 June 2011	5,151,788	460,248	1,147,724	6,759,760
Balance at 1 July 2011	5,151,788	460,248	1,147,724	6,759,760
Additions		83,189	•	83,189
Disposals		(73,234)	-	(73,234)
Balance at 30 June 2012	5,151,788	470,203	1,147,724	6,769,715
Accumulated Depreciation			,	
Balance at 1 July 2010	(1,517,129)	(265,205)	(249,005)	(2,031,339)
Depreciation charge for the year Disposals	(105,752)	(37,061)	(25,480)	(168,293)
Balance at 30 June 2011	(1,622,881)	(302,266)	(274,485)	(2,199,632)
Balance at 1 July 2011	(1,622,881)	(302,266)	(274,485)	(2,199,632)
Depreciation charge for the year	(106,025)	(39,386)	(28,164)	(173,575)
Disposals	10	72,598	1	72,598
Balance at 30 June 2012	(1,728,906)	(269,054)	(302,649)	(2,300,609)
Carrying amounts At 1 July 2010	3,634,659	93,104	898,719	4,626,482
At 30 June 2011	3,528,907	157,982	873,239	4,560,128
At 1 July 2011	3,528,907	157,982	873,239	4,560,128
At 30 June 2012	3,422,882	201,149	845,075	4,469,106



W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Notes to the financial statements

15. Trade and other payables

		2012	2011
	Trade payables	18,122	31,762
	Other payables and accrued expenses	156,666	127,763
		174,788	159,525
16.	Employee benefits		
	Current		
		2012	2011
	Provision for long-service leave	30,041	19,748
	Provision for annual leave	59,343	56,021
		89,384	75,769
	Non-current		
	Provision for long-service leave	27,887	18,893
		27,887	18,893
17.	Income received in advance		
	Current		
		2012	2011
	State tennis centre	101,829	101,829
	Clay courts	4,828	4,828
	Rebound ace courts	18,848	18,848
	Other	53,070	27,210
		178,575	152,715
	Non-current	8	
	State tennis centre	3,205,313	3,307,142
	Clay courts	128,071	132,899
	Rebound ace courts	595,581	614,429
		3,928,965	4,054,470



17

s Association Incorporated

W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Notes to the financial statements

18. Capital and reserves

Player Development Fund

This reserve was established to combine amounts in the above reserves, with the purposes of development and enhancement of players in Western Australia.

100 Club

In the past, this fund included sanction fees (IOVF) applied to entries of qualifying tournaments. This now has funds allocated to it from fundraising efforts of the 100 club and the funds are to be used for player development.

Asset Replacement Reserve

These are reserves set aside for the replacement and improvement of assets at the State Tennis Centre.

Members Equity

The Association is incorporated under the Associations Incorporation Act 1987. In the event of the Association being wound up the liability of members is determined by its rules.

19. Financial instruments

Credit Risk

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of the Association's financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The Association's maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

		Carrying am	iount
	Note	2012	2011
Trade and other receivables (less prepayments)	12	51,897	83,029
Cash and cash equivalents	11	971,172	802,179
		1,023,069	885,208

The Association's maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables (less prepayments) at the reporting date by geographic region was \$51,897 in Australia (2011: \$83,029).

The Association's most significant customer accounts for 22% or 3,300 of the trade receivables carrying amount at 30 June 2012. (2011: 62% or 30,001).

Impairment losses

The aging of the Association's trade receivables at the reporting date was:

	GIUSS	GIUSS
	2012	2011
Not past due	4,223	36,753
Past due 31-60 days	4,331	751
Past due 61-90 days	3,586	8,179
Past due 90 days	3,030	2,681
	15,170	48,364

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

	2012	2011
Balance at 1 July	(96)	(182)
Impairment gain recognised	96	86
Balance at 30 June	-	(96)



18

W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Notes to the financial statements

20. Financial instruments (continued) Liquidity Risk

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest.

30 June 2012

	Note	Carrying amount	Contractual cash flows	6 mths or less
Non-derivative financial liabilities				
Trade and other payables	15	174,788	(174,788)	(174,788)
		174,788	(174,788)	(174,788)
30 June 2011				
	Note	Carrying amount	Contractual cash flows	6 mths or less
Non-derivative financial liabilities				
Trade and other payables	15	159,525	(159,525)	(159,525)
		159,525	(159,525)	(159,525)

There are no non-derivative financial liabilities with contractual maturities greater than 6 months

Refer to note 5 for details on the Association's approach to managing liquidity risk.

Interest Rate Risk

Profile

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Association's interest-bearing financial instruments were:

	Association		
	Carrying amount		
	2012	2011	
Fixed rate instruments			
Financial assets - Bank of Queensland investment	86,028	146,924	
Financial assets - Bank of Queensland investment	86,028	15,150	
Financial assets - Bank of Queensland investment	85,776	159,368	
Financial assets - Bank of Queensland investment	84,572	-	
Financial assets - Bank of Queensland investment	90,000	-	
Financial assets - Bank of Queensland investment	90,000	(7)	
Financial assets - Macquarie investment account	56,127	53,045	
Financial assets - Commonwealth Bank	156,318		
	734,849	374,487	
Variable rate instruments			
Financial assets - CBA Saver bank account	79,235	327,212	
Financial assets - CBA bank account	153,688	99,780	
HATCH TO ARTHOUGH AND HATCH AND	232,923	426,992	



19

Equity

W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Notes to the financial statements

20. Financial instruments (continued)

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/(decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis was performed on the same basis for 2011.

	100bp increase	100bp decrease	100bp increase	100bp decrease
30 June 2012				
Variable rate instruments	2,329	(2,329)	-	-
Cash flow sensitivity (net)	2,329	(2,329)	-	-
	Profit or loss	Equity		
	100bp increase	100bp decrease	100bp increase	100bp decrease
30 June 2011				
Variable rate instruments	4,270	(4,270)		-
Cash flow sensitivity (net)	4,270	(4,270)	8	-

Profit or loss

Fair values versus carrying amounts

The carrying amount of assets and liabilities shown in the balance sheet approximate their fair value

21. Operating leases

Leases as lessee

The Association leases property under non-cancellable operating leases with terms from 2-50 years. Leases generally provide the Association with a right of renewal at which time all terms are renegotiated.

Under the terms and conditions of the funds received from the State Government towards the construction costs and the land associated with the State Tennis Centre, the Association is required to comply with certain terms and conditions in connection with the operation of the State Tennis Centre. The directors believe all terms and conditions have been met during the period.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2012, \$200 was recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income in respect of operating leases (2011: \$200).



20

W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Notes to the financial statements

22. Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities

	Note	2012	2011
Cash flows from operating activities			
Surplus for the period		96,230	133,915
Adjusted for:			
Depreciation	14	173,575	168,293
Operating profit before changes in working capital	7555		
and provisions		269,805	302,208
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables		44,433	(14,445)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories		(919)	1,455
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables		15,263	(4,412)
(Decrease)/increase in provisions and employee benefits		22,609	5,235
(Decrease)/increase in income received in advance		(99,645)	(158,380)
Net cash from operating activities		251,546	131,661

23. Other related party transactions

The Association being an Associate member of Tennis Australia (TA) receives shared services benefits from TA. These benefits include accounting, legal, human resources and information technology resources. These services are provided for nil consideration.

The names of each person holding the position of officer of the Association during the financial year were: Dean Williams, Michael Lee, Bill Price, Ray Collins, Jim Davies, Wayne Firns, Hayden Gibson, Siobhan Drake Brockman and Loretta Hughes. Directors of the Association are acting on an honorary basis.

The key management personnel for Tennis West include the following employees: Andrew Stanbury (resigned August 2011), Michael Robertson (commenced October 2011), Brooke Koenig and Shane Smedley.

Key management personnel compensation

In AUD	2012	2011
Short-term employee benefits	258,790	238,268
Post employment benefits	23,677	20,880
Total compensation	282.467	259.148

24. Economic dependence

The Association receives grant funding from Tennis Australia Limited, the DSR and Healthways, that forms an integral part of the funding required for the Association to achieve its short and long term objectives.

It is the view of the Board that the Association would still be able to continue meeting the above objectives regardless of this funding being received in the future, albeit to a lesser extent

25. Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to balance date which would have a material effect on the Association's financial statements.



21

W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated Statement by the directors

In the opinion of the directors of W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated ('the Association'):

- (a) the financial statements and notes set out on pages 1 to 20, are in accordance with the Associations Incorporation Act 1987, including:
 - (i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Association as at 30 June 2012 and of their performance, for the financial year ended on that date, and
 - (ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Associations Incorporation Act 1987;
- (b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Association will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

Dated at Perth. 30th day of August 2012

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

Michael Lee Acting President H.T.S. Price

Treasurer & Director

Independent Audit Report





22

Independent audit report to the members of W.A. Tennis Association Incorporation Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated (the Association), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2012, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes 1 to 25 comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and the directors' declaration.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the Association are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Associations Incorporations Act 1987, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Association's committee members, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We performed the procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and Associations Incorporation Act 1987, a view which is consistent with our understanding of the Association's financial position, and of its performance.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board.

> KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG international Cooperative ("KPMG international"), a Swiss entity.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.

Independent Audit Report





23

Auditor's opinion

In our opinion the financial report of W.A. Tennis Association Incorporated is properly drawn up so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Association as at 30 June 2012, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Associations Incorporation Act 1987 and Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations).

KPMG

Gordon Sangster Partner

Melbourne

30 August 2012